
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


July 24, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on July 24, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Staff Absent: Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the July 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced Imam Ahmed Jafari of the Islamic Community Center of Atlanta and he
spoke of the work at the Center work.  He then asked Imam Jafari to offer the invocation and Imam Jafari did so.


Commissioner McCarty led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 2014 All-County Boys Soccer Team.


Chairman Brown introduced Mr. Christopher Dunn of the Fayette Daily News who helped in recognizing
members of the 2014 All-County Boys Soccer Team.  The following team members were in the audience
and were recognized by the Board: Chris Dognazzi, Matt Dognazzi, Spencer Wrobleski, Aaron Brewer, and
Brandon Bernard.  Mr. Adam Sheikali, who was not present, was recognized at the 2014 All-County Boys
Soccer Player of the Year.  Mr. Bunky Colvin was recognized as the 2014 All-County Boys Soccer Coach of



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 2


the Year.  Coach Colvin introduced other unnamed members of the team and he also introduced Athletic
Director Stacey Smith to the Board before he briefly commented on the team’s success.  Copies of the
request and recognitions, identified as “Attachment 1,” follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


2. Recognition of Eagle Scout Jason Girolami.


Chairman Steve Brown recognized Eagle Scout Jason Girolami for earning the rank of Eagle Scout.  Mr.
Girolami spoke to the Board about his Eagle Scout project and gave a PowerPoint presentation about the
project.  The Board congratulated Mr. Girolami for achieving the Eagle rank.  Copies of the request and the
PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 2,” follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


3. Consideration of Petition No. 1235-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent,
request to rezone 10.56 acres from A-R to R-45, with said property being located in Land Lot 87 of
the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Road.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina informed the Board that the County had received a letter
from the applicant asking the Board to table Petition No. 1235-14 and Petition No. RP-052-14 (Public
Hearings 3 and 4) until the August 28, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  He explained that the
applicant wanted to work with the Public Works Department and particularly with Public Works Director Phil
Mallon on this matter, but that there was not enough time and Mr. Mallon was not present at this meeting. 
Mr. Frisina stated that tabling these two public hearings would provide more time for the applicant and staff.


Chairman Brown moved to table Public Hearings #3 and #4 until the August 28, 2014 Board of
Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


4. Consideration of Petition No. RP-052-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent,
request to add six (6) lots to the Minor Subdivision Plat for Max Fuller, with said property being
located in Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Road.


This item was tabled until the August 28, 2014 Board of Commissioners meetings pursuant to the vote
taken for Public Hearing #3.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


5. Consideration of Petition No. 1236-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary, Inc., Agent,
request to rezone 2.00 acres from A-R and R-70 to R-40, with said property being located in Land
Lots 72 and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail, with one condition.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings for the Rezoning of
Property into the record.  A copy of the Introduction to Public Hearings for Rezoning of Property, identified
as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 3


Mr. Brian McCreary, Agent, briefed the Board on Petition No. 1236-14.  He stated that he was speaking on
behalf of Mr. Danny Reid who sold two acres to the D’Souza family, and he explained that the D’Souza
family was trying to expand their property along Dogwood Trail from two acres to three acres.  He said he
has worked with Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton in order to find something that would comply with the
land lot use, and he asked the Board to vote in favor of Petition 1236-14.


Chad Heath:  Mr. Heath, the D’Souza’s realtor, spoke in favor of approving Petition No. 1236-14 on behalf
of the D’Souza family.  He stated that both Walter and Angela D’Souza came to him with the intention to
purchase the two lots that Mr. McCreary referred to so they could build homes for their kids.  He stated that
there would only be two houses, or just one house on each lot.  He added that he has been working with
Mr. Reid and Mr. McCreary in order to get the intention accomplished in the best way possible for everyone
involved.


No one else spoke in favor of Petition 1236-14.


Eric Maxwell:  Mr. Maxwell spoke for approximately twenty-one minutes in opposition to Petition No. 1236-
14.  The following is a verbatim transcript of Mr. Maxwell’s comments as requested by Mr. Maxwell and
agreed to by the Board.  The transcript begins at 7:28:24 and ends at 7:49:25 of the audio recording of the
meeting: 


Eric Maxwell:  My name is Eric Maxwell, and I’ve lived in Fayette County since 1972.  I live at 1585


Redwine Road, just south of here.  Before I start my presentation, I want to say how sorry I am about our


loss of John Munford.  Obviously y’all know that I worked in this building and in this chamber for four years,


he was my reporter, and I was sad to learn of his passing.  Before I get started with my presentation, I want


to, and I will address the Board because I heard what Mr. Frisina said, but some of them are actually


directed to individuals.  Mr. Chairman, if you will give me some latitude, I will get to my point. 


Chairman Steve Brown:    Yes, sir.


Maxwell: Mr. Chairman, you and I have known each other for at least ten years.  I only recall having one


conversation with you, other than today, and that was when I was elected judge of the City of Peachtree


City.  You swore me in. It was a four-to-one vote. I wish it had been a five-to-“o” vote, but you saw


otherwise.  And I served my years there.  You didn’t interfere with the court, and I appreciated the


opportunity to serve Peachtree City when you were mayor.  That being said, I’ve been adverse to a lot of


your positions.  And, suffice it to say, you and I don’t agree even though we don’t talk with each other.  And


that’s probably the best way for you and I to deal with each other.  And that’s fine with me.     


Brown: Absolutely.  We can agree to disagree.


Maxwell: We can agree to disagree, and that’s what we do.  This is America, and just like the presentation


at the beginning, we are all Americans and we’re Fayette Countians.  That being said, you know that I’ve


dedicated a lot of money to other campaigns with candidates against you.  I’ve also been very vocal during


your races by writing letters to the editor.  In fact, I coined the term “Goat Man,” and during that election,


and I still hear from time to time folks refer to you as that.  And I’m not trying to bring up old memories, but


I’m just reminding you of the history that you and I have had; although we do it at an arm’s length


transaction.  There has been a series of letters that I’ve written and I’ve certainly got opinions.  But I will say


this, when I left this chamber two-and-a-half years ago, I said, from Commissioner Barlow’s seat, “I do not







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 4


plan to return to this chamber and to give this Commission a hard time,” because during the four times that


I was Commissioner that is what I dealt with.  You’ve dealt with folks like that during your career as well. 


But every commission meeting that I had I had a former Commissioner come and tell me why I was doing


things wrong.  And I made a commitment, and I even called Mr. Rapson before he was appointed, I said “I


have no plans to come to this chamber and give this chamber, this Board of Commissioners, a hard time.” 


That doesn’t mean I don’t have an opinion about some of the things that y’all do, but I’ve not vocalized it,


I’ve not written letters to the editor, I’ve not come here to talk about any of those various issues.  But this


one is personal to me.  So this is why I am here.  Because of that, Mr. Chairman, I am asking that you


recuse yourself from the vote when we finally get there.  That will be a decision you have to make . . .


Brown: I understand.


Maxwell: And I would just hope that you give the D’Souza’s the fairness, you give the Reid’s the fairness,


but you will also give Eric Maxwell the fairness, as well as giving the citizens of Fayette County the fairness. 


Mr. Barlow, I believe that I’ve shaken your hand one time before tonight.  It was down at a County


Commission debate, we shook hands, we had a pleasant conversation.  Other than that, I don’t have any


other recollection of ever speaking with you.  However, I did write an email about you, and I coined the term


“Double-Bankruptcy Barlow.”  That term is offensive.  I think it put you to ridicule.  Because of that, I’m


asking that you recuse yourself from this vote.  That will be a fairness issue that you have got to decide


whether you can sit in judgment of this.  I want you to be fair to the D’Souza’s, the Reid’s, to myself, and the


citizens of Fayette County.  Mr. Ognio, Commissioner Ognio, I don’t recall ever talking to you until tonight. 


Maybe I did, but I don’t remember.  We shook hands tonight.  I wrote a letter to The Citizen.  It was
published. It put you to ridicule.  I coined the term “Road Rage Randy.”  And some folks still refer to you as


that, at least in my circles.  I also sued you personally.  I sued your wife.  And I sued your son, Rocky.  And


in fact, today, your attorney called me and I filed the final document in that lawsuit to end the litigation with


the court today.  I’ve got a copy of it if you’d like it.  Because of the history that I’ve had with you, not you


personally because I don’t remember ever talking to you, I did talk to Denise one time, it’s the same debate


that we had down in south Fayette County all those years ago.  But I ask that you also recuse yourself. 


That’s a decision that you’ll have to make on whether you can be fair in this decision for the Reid’s, for the


D’Souza’s, for myself, and for the citizens of Fayette County.  Commissioner McCarty, you and I have


probably the closest relationship of all the commissioners that are currently on the Board of


Commissioners.  You ran against me.  Congratulations, and I hope you’ve enjoyed this position.  I also


sued you personally.  I didn’t give you a nickname; that was before my nicknaming days, I guess, had


started.  


Brown: Lucky Allen . . .


Maxwell: And that case was eventually dismissed, I dismissed it, but I subjected you also to ridicule in the


front page of the newspaper by exposing that you had not paid your taxes in a timely manner.  I ask you


also to recuse yourself from this.  That will be a decision you’ll have to make on whether you can be fair to


the D’Souza’s, to the Reid’s, to myself, and to the citizens of Fayette County.  Vice-Chairman Oddo, I don’t


recall ever talking to you.  I don’t think that I’ve ever written a letter about you.  I’ve never sued you.  I’ve


never, as far as I know, publicly said anything about you one way or the other.  I don’t have the same


concerns that I have with the other four members of the Board of Commissioners.  I preface those remarks


just to remind you of your duty and the fairness that you’ve got, as you sit there today, that if it’s political


payback that you make this decision, you may not even known that I was involved in this issue. You do


now.   If you read your minutes, not your minutes, if you read your preparation material, some of you may


have picked up my name was in that package.  It was not conspicuous, you have to hunt for it, but it’s in







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 5


there.  I’ve come to talk to you today about a rezoning of the Dogwood property because it’s contiguous to


a piece of property that I own down there.  This is the second time that this has occurred since y’all have


been a Board of Commissioners.  I told you I live on Redwine Road.  When Zac Brown was doing his


rezoning, folks contacted me and asked me to voice an opinion.  I had no objection to that. I did not voice


an opinion.  I did not come here in support of Mr. Brown’s rezoning or in opposition, even though we’ve got


contiguous boundary lines.  On this one, on Tuesday, I had to go see my CPA in Tyrone, and I happened to


drive past this house.  I do not live there.  I bought this house from my paralegal who worked for me for


seventeen years, he had recently divorced, it was an opportunity, and I own about a 2,200 acre, 2,200


square foot house on two acres that’s on the south side of the property [that is presented] for the rezoning. 


It’s a wooded lot, and I assume that y’all have read your materials that were provided to you before the


meeting.  I always read mine, but I will tell you my experience when I was on the Board of Commissioners


is that I could tell sometimes my fellow Commissioners had not read their preparatory materials, because if


they read it they wouldn’t have asked some of the stupid questions that they asked because the answer


was right there in their face.  But this property that you’re requested for the rezoning, they are requesting


rezoning from Agriculture A-R and R-70 to an R-40.  And let me tell you the significance of that request. 


The significance of that request is all the difference in the world.  I talked to Dennis yesterday, and


unfortunately Pete was out of the office, I didn’t get to talk to Pete, but I talked to Dennis and I said, “Would


you please have a presentation that we could make that we could show the platted lots that are around this


property.”  And you’ve got that in your material.  Unfortunately, you’ve got a real tight view in your material,


and I came prepared because we used to have the camera overhead with a little-bit bigger one, but let me


tell you a little bit about this area.  Its south of Tyrone, west of Tyrone, east of Tyrone, it’s the property that’s


in between Tyrone and Peachtree City.  And so when you look at this area . . .


Brown: I’ll tell you what, if we can, we will bring it up, if you want to correct our . . .


Maxwell: I think it’s, I think it’s it is Exhibit 19, is the one that is in your material.  That doesn’t give you a


real good idea of what, and that’s it, and the property . . .


Brown: Can we take the “Public Hearing,” yeah, thank you.


Maxwell: On the bottom yellow, in the middle where it says “R-70,” that’s my house or that’s my property.


Dogwood Trail, your newly elected State Senator is in the A-R, this is his house.  That’s thirty-one acres; I


believe that’s 31-acres.  The A-R over here, that’s about 30-acres.  This is the large tract, the Reid tract, is


31-acres.


Brown: The red one there.


Maxwell: The Reid tract is 31-acres.  My tract is two.  This is two.  This is a father-son.  This property, if you


could see it, actually comes way down and way back up, but twenty-something acres.  This is the large.  


Now, you have two anomalies here.  And that’s a half-acre lot and that’s a one-acre lot.  There’s a house on


this property; this is a vacant lot.  When you drive past it you don’t see a line there; it’s all one lot.  And


then, but, as I said, that property is large.  If you had a larger view of this, you would see an R-70, R-70, R-


70.  If you had a larger view of this that not only on the property you’re trying to rezone are there no R-40s,


but every property surrounding the properties that I just pointed out are not R-40 or R-70; [they are A-R]. 


So, what you are being asked to do is spot zone.  There is no way other than to say it.  It’s a spot zone to


put an AR-40 in there.  Well what’s the significance between an AR-40, or an R-40, and an R-70?  An R-70


is a minimum two-acre lot.  I have no objection to this Board rezoning to R-70.  I have a strong objection to







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 6


this Board rezoning to an R-40 because that is a one-acre lot.  And what you would be doing, if you put a


one-acre lot, if you zone this, even though this is shown as two acres, if you zone that Residential 40, then


what you’ve done is you’ve completely busted this entire area.  Not just this property, you will have busted


this entire property.  And interestingly, in the minutes of the Planning and Zoning, and this is from Mr.


Dutton, and these aren’t verbatim minutes and they’ve not been approved because the meeting was just in


early January, early July.  And I don’t know what page this is on your notes, but its page ten of the minutes 


. . .  


Brown: Okay.


Maxwell: From the Planning and Zoning.  And Mr. Dutton is reported to have made the comment


something like this, and I’m gonna want to read the entire thing.  The only way to make Dennis Dutton;


errors in it, and I’m gonna add a couple words to make it make some sense.


Brown: Can you tell us what paragraph you’re on?


Maxwell: It’s the third paragraph, the Dennis Dutton paragraph, on page ten.  Starting about two sentences


or two lines down: “The only way to make the lot big was to go with an R-40, and the property owner is
trying to maintain 300 of frontage on the large A-R lot so,” and this is where you’ve got to add some words


because it’s not accurate, “so if needed be it can be subdivided in the future.” That’s the plan that is being
presented to you, is that, I don’t know where the exhibit . . .


Brown: Can you put that back up please, Tameca?


Maxwell: What we’re talking about is this property right here.  You put an AR-40 here, Mr. Reid then gets to


subdivide this entire, and this property goes way, if you have the scale, it would go all the way down to the


floor, and back up.  It’s 31-acres; twenty-five of it is in pasture.  You’ve got an overhead in your materials


where you can see, and twenty-five of it is not in the flood zone.  So you’ve got twenty-five acres to put R-


40 there.  It’s a domino effect.  Once you do this on R-40, then this one is going to come along.  They are


not asking for this big tract to go to an R-40 today, but I guarantee you at some time down the future that’s


what’s going to happen.  And then what happens with this one happens with this one, happens to this one,


happens to this one, won’t happen to this one.  This one right here is another large tract right here.  And so


it’s a domino effect.  Once this floodgate is opened, you set the precedent in that area.  Now when I was


Commissioner I had these kind of issues come up.  My standard, and it’s not a legal standard, but Eric


Maxwell’s standard, was I looked at every property that was contiguous to the subject property, and did it


fit, was there another piece of property that was similarly situated that was contiguous.  The answer is no. 


You go outside the ring; again, there is no other outside the ring that is contiguous to R-40.  I asked Dennis,


and now, Pete, I don’t know if you are prepared to answer, where is the closest R-40 property located to the


subject property.  I don’t know where it’s at in Fayette County.  Now you got smaller tracts that are in


obviously in Tyrone, and you’ve got smaller tracts that are in Peachtree City, but this is Fayette County, this


isn’t the two cities.  I want to remind you guys, I don’t remember verbatim what was in your campaign


literature or what you said or anything like that, but each one of you committed to the Fayette County Land


Use Plan.  A vote for this is a vote against the Land Use Plan.  If you want to do this project with R-40, what


you need to do is, you need to change your Land Use Plan; you don’t need to do a rezoning.  Look at the


stipulations that have been put on this property by the Zoning Board, or the Planning and Zoning.  They


recognize there’s a problem with this, and in fact in the minutes, on that same page number ten, they talk


about.  Doug Powell, the last sentence on page ten: “Doug Powell said I think you are creating a bigger
problem with R-40 in this area.”  And no truer statement could have been made.  Now the Planning and


Zoning voted four-to-one; he was the only one who voted against it.  But that is an accurate statement that







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 7


you are going to open the floodgates if you rezone to R-40.  I have no objection to R-70.  Now when I was


on the Board, I asked the question, the applicant has asked for R-40, was the decision that I could make,


was I limited to making the decision either to leave it alone or go to R-40, but I choose something other than


that.  I didn’t know.  When I was in office we only rezoned one-hundred acres.  Y’all had an opportunity to


do some more things because it’s the way the economy hit.  But I asked that question:   Am I locked in


between what is existing, is it a “yes” or “no?”  And the answer is it is not a “yes” or “no.”  You can ask Mr.


Davenport, it’s not a “yes” or “no.”  Even though they’ve not asked for 70, y’all can rezone it seventy.  Once


he’s opened the door, it’s up to y’all to make the decision.  I’m asking you to make the decision for R-70. 


You could just deny it; I’m not asking to completely deny it.  I’ve never met the D’Souza’s; I’ve never met


Mr. Reid as far as I know.  I’ve never met the realtor, Mr. Heath.  There’s some argument that back in 2001,


when this property was initially rezoned, that there was an error by the County Commission.  I don’t know


what that error was, and in the materials you were provided you were not provided any notes from the 2001


rezoning request by Mr. Reid.  I didn’t have enough time to go do that, I found out about it on a Tuesday, I


guarantee I would have gone to Planning and Zoning it if I had known about it sooner.  If I had more time I


would have spent a little bit more time preparing this, but, like a lot of things, we have a limited number of


hours in a day and I still run a full-time practice as well.  But I don’t know what the problem was back in


2001, but how come all of a sudden in 2014, thirteen years later, is the first time that it’s recognized that


there’s a problem.  There is no problem out there.  What the problem is is to create a situation that put a R-


40 in this area, and put the R-40, and let that property go to R-40 and one-acre lots.  I’m going to close with


that.  I’m more than happy to take questions from whoever.  I’ve not walked the property; didn’t go out


there.  I’ve driven every road around it.  There is not a road out there, there’s not a property out there that is


a small, other than the nonconforming property that evidently was there in existence before that, you know,


the zoning ordinance came in.  So I’m asking that you deny R-40.  I have no problem with R-70 [End of


Transcript].  


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner spoke in opposition of Petition 1236-14 saying property needed to be utilized
for encouraging businesses to come to Fayette County, and that if Fayette County should begin
encouraging one-acre lots then it would be defeating the long-term stance that the county has historically
taken.  He asked the Board members to set aside their past histories and to focus on what is best for the
Fayette County community.  He further suggested that the lots in the subject area appeared to have been
zoned through “backroom politicking.” 


No one else spoke in opposition to Petition No. 1236-14.


The Board asked Mr. McCreary if he wanted to respond to those who spoke in opposition to Petition No.
1236-14, and Mr. McCreary did so by saying there was not enough room in the proposed property to cut
one-acre lots.  Mr. Heath also responded to those who spoke in opposition saying the D’Souza family did
not have a problem with the property being rezoned to R-70, but that the R-40 zoning was requested in
order to keep all parties happy.  He explained that the D’Souza’s intentions were to have two nice houses
on four acres next to each other for their family.  He added that Mr. Reid had been working with the
D’Souza’s since he wanted to consummate the sale of the property as quickly as possible. 


Chairman Brown asked Mr. Frisina to tell the Board of the Planning Commission’s vote and why Mr. Doug
Powell voted in opposition to the recommendation before the Board.  Mr. Frisina replied that the Planning
Commission determined that zoning to R-40 would be compliant with the Land Use Plan since the Land
Use Plan allows for one-acre and two-acre lots in the area.  He stated that Mr. Powell’s concerns were
basically those expressed by Mr. Maxwell, namely, that there is no other one-acre zoning in the immediate







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 8


area.  Mr. Frisina stated that his opinion was that a lack of one-acre zoning in an area does not preclude
the area for being zoned to one-acre since there was a time in Fayette County when no land was zoned to
one-acre properties.  He further informed the Board that when he looks at properties that are petitioned for
rezoning that he looks at a much larger area than the subject property.  He stated that for properties that
are petitioned for potentially one-acre lots he looks for certain criteria such as good roads and infrastructure
such as public water.  He stated that the subject property under consideration meets the criteria since it is
sandwiched between Peachtree City and the Town of Tyrone.  Mr. Frisina agreed that there are large tracts
of A-R zoned properties as well as R-70 zoned properties in the area, but that the area did not have an
unpaved road or any part that was unable to handle traffic.  He concluded that in the larger sense, the
subject area was “Land Used” for one-acre, two-acres, and A-R properties, and that was the feeling of the
Planning Commission.


Mr. Frisina stated that one condition was recommended should the property be rezoned, but that the
condition included three options that the applicant could choose from.  He stated that the condition had
been revised, but he explained that the only revision was that a six-month time period was added to each of
the three options; meaning one option chosen by the petitioner has to be met within six months.   Mr.
Frisina then read the following condition with its three options into the record:


That the owner/developer shall execute one (1) of the three (3) options below prior to the submittal of the


revised Final Plat of Reid Estate:


a. Obtain a variance by the Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the minimum floor area requirement;


or


b. Remove the nonconforming single-family residence; or


c. Add additional floor area to the existing single-family dwelling to bring it into compliance, this


requires a variance approved by the Planning Commission to issue a building permit prior to the


revision to the Final Plat being approved and recorded, per the Subdivision Regulations.


Mr. Frisina repeated that the condition had to be met within 180-days, regardless of which option the
petitioner chose to accept.  


Commissioner Ognio asked why R-70 was not being considered.  Mr. Frisina replied that R-70 zoning had
been considered but that it would not work on the subject property because of the lot-width problems.  He
said “you would have to go up to R-75 or R-78 to make it work,” but he added that the house sizes would be
increased to either 2,500 square feet or 3,000 square feet with either of those zoning options.  


Commissioner Oddo asked Mr. Frisina what the difference between R-40 and R-70 based on house size. 
Mr. Frisina replied that R-40 is 1,500 square feet and that R-70 is 1,500 square feet.  Commissioner Oddo
noted that the zonings required the same square footage for houses.


Commissioner Ognio asked if the lot was zoned for two different zonings, and Mr. Frisina replied that it was
split-zoned into both R-70 and A-R zonings.  He stated that he included a final plat in the agenda package
that was approved in 2001, and he suggested that was the error Mr. Maxwell had referred to during his
comments.   







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 9


Chairman Brown stated that Mr. Maxwell had suggested that approving R-40 zoning, as requested, was
spot-zoning since it would embed one-acre lots into the middle of “non-one-acre lots.”  He asked if the Land
Use Plan called for the use of one-acre lots in the area.  Mr. Frisina replied that the Land Use Plan makes
an allowance for one-unit for one-to-two acres, and that the low end would be one unit for one acre. 
Chairman Brown pointed out that Mr. McCreary had stated in his rebuttal that the land could not be
subdivided in order to build multiple lots, and he asked Mr. Frisina to comment on that matter.  Mr. Frisina
replied that the petitioners were not trying to build a subdivision with a road.  He explained that the
petitioners were trying to maintain enough frontage on the road since each lot in Fayette County is required
to have a minimum 100 feet of frontage for each road.  He told the Board that the only way to get around
that requirement is to build a public road going into the cut lots.  Chairman Brown asked if building a public
road into the cut lots was feasible, and Mr. Frisina replied that it probably was feasible given enough time
and money.


Commissioner Oddo asked if property that is rezoned with conditions would lead to additional rezoning to
the surrounding properties without those conditions.  Mr. Frisina replied that the reason this request is
conditioned is because the conditions are required by ordinance, and he said the reason the requirements
are listed as conditions is because it gets the requirements into the open.  Commissioner Oddo clarified
that the Land Use Plan is the plan for properties in the area and that, generally, it calls for low-density
residential zoning.  Mr. Frisina agreed with Commissioner Oddo while reiterating that R-40 zoning is in
compliance with the Land Use Plan.


Commissioner Ognio clarified that the majority of properties in the subject area were zoned A-R, and Mr.
Frisina agreed that was the case.  Commissioner Ognio asked how it would work if the Board wanted to
rezone to a classification that was not requested by the petitioner.  Mr. Frisina replied that if the Board’s
intention was to change density in the area then the Board should change the Land Use Plan.  County
Attorney Dennis Davenport added that, if the petitioner asks for a particular zoning district, then Board has
the ability to rezone the property to a less-intense district than what the petitioner requested.  He restated
that the Board was not limited to what the petitioner asks for since the Board can approve a different zoning
district, so long as it is not more intense than what was originally requested.  Commissioner Ognio asked if
the petitioner had to agree to R-70; should the Board decide to rezone the subject property to R-70.  Mr.
Davenport replied that once the petitioner files for a property to be rezoned and if the information leads to
the conclusion that there is a zoning district that is more suitable for the property, then the Board has the
ability to rezone the property to that more suitable zoning district.   


Chairman Brown asked the petitioners if they had a problem with rezoning the subject property to R-70.  Mr.
Heath replied that Mr. D’Souza’s had no problem rezoning to R-70.  Commissioner Ognio stated that the
rezoning might have to be R-75.  Mr. Heath replied that rezoning the property to R-75 could present a
problem for the D’Souza’s.  Mr. Frisina reminded the Board that there were problems with rezoning the
subject property to R-70, and that in order to maintain two-acre properties the next option would be
rezoning to R-75.  Mr. Heath repeated that he did not think rezoning the properties to R-75 would work for
the D’Souza’s.


Chairman Brown asked Mr. McCreary, as Agent for Danny Ray Reid, if the conditions that were read into
the record and that were to be completed within 180 days were acceptable.  Mr. McCreary answered that
he was in agreement and that there was agreement to meet the conditions within 180 days as stipulated by
the Board of Commissioners.  







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 10


Mr. Davenport informed the Board that one of the three options asked for a variance for a house size
because the existing house does not currently meet the minimum house size.  He reminded the Board that
if the reason it did not want to look strongly to R-75 or R-78 was due to house size; then the house does not
meet house size anyway.  He explained that if the petitioner’s motivation was to seek a variance because
the house size is smaller than the minimum that is required for the district it is getting, then a variance
would still be needed even if the subject property was rezoned to R-75 zoning.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept consideration of Petition No. 1236-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and
Brian McCreary, Inc., Agent, request to rezone 2.00 acres from A-R and R-70 to R-40, with said property
being located in Land Lots 72 and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail, with one condition
with the additional six-month time limit.  The motion failed for a lack of a second.


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept Petition No. 1236-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary,
Inc., Agent, request to rezone 2.00 acres from A-R and R-70 to R-75, with said property being located in
Land Lots 72 and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail, with one condition with the additional
six-month time limit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  


Commissioners Ognio, Brown, Barlow and McCarty briefly responded to Mr. Maxwell’s request for each of
them to recuse themselves. Commissioner McCarty added that he would abstain from voting on the motion
since he did not like the direction this consideration was going.


Chairman Brown asked the applicant to return to the podium, clarified that the motion was to rezone the
property from A-R and R-70 to R-75, and asked if that was acceptable to the applicant.  He also asked Mr.
Heath if this action would be acceptable to the D’Souza’s.  Mr. McCreary, representing Mr. Danny Reid,
stated this matter was moving too fast and he was not prepared for rezoning the property R-75, and he
asked Mr. Frisina to explain the differences between R-70 and R-75.  Mr. Frisina briefly explained the
differences. Mr. Heath, representing the D’Souza family, informed the Board that the family was not ready
to commit to putting a 2,500 square foot house on the property.  He said the D’Souza’s had the first right of
refusal any time that Mr. Reid wanted to sell the property, and that the D’Souza’s did everything they could
to build two additional houses.  Mr. Heath added that it is a lot to ask the D’Souza’s to spend about $75,000
in additional expenses on a house at this point, and he reiterated that the R-75 zoning would not work for
the D’Souza’s.  Discussion followed.


The motion to accept Petition No. 1236-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary, Inc., Agent,
request to rezone 2.00 acres from A-R and R-70 to R-75, with said property being located in Land Lots 72
and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail, with one condition with the additional six-month
time limit passed 3-1-1 with Chairman Brown voting in opposition and Commissioner McCarty abstaining
from the vote.  Copies of the request, Ordinance 1236-14, and Resolution 1236-14, identified as
“Attachment 6,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Consideration of Petition No. RP-053-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary, Inc., Agent,
request to add one (1) lot to the Final Plat of Reid Estate, with said property being located in Land
Lots 72 and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail.







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 11


Chairman Brown asked how Petition No. RP-053-14 was impacted since the subject properties had been
rezoned to R-75 with the last vote. Community Development Director Pete Frisina answered that the last
Board had just voted to rezone the subject property to R-75 from a property that had been split-zoned.  He
explained that for a lot to be created, the Final Plat had to be revised since it is part of the Subdivision
Regulations.  He summarized that Petition RP-053-14 would give staff permission to revise the Final Plat.


Mr. McCreary, standing as Agent for Mr. Danny Ray Reid, said he was not familiar with what was being
done so he was not prepared to speak about it.  He said he would get with Zoning Administrator Dennis
Dutton to try to work something out.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request. 


Mr. Eric Maxwell asked for the Board to adopt the verbatim comments that he made in opposition of Petition
1236-14 if it was acceptable to the Board.  Chairman Brown replied that the Board would adopt the
verbatim comments given by Mr. Maxwell.


Chairman Brown informed the Board that he did not like having a petitioner come to the podium saying he
did not know what was being voted on, and he asked if this item should be tabled.  Community
Development Director Pete Frisina replied that this vote was procedural based on the vote that took place
under Public Hearing #5.  Discussion followed.


Chairman Brown moved to approve Petition No. RP-053-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary,
Inc., Agent, request to add one (1) lot to the Final Plat of Reid Estate, with said property being located in
Land Lots 72 and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.  Discussion followed.


Chairman Brown repeated that he did not like voting on something when the petitioner comes to the podium
and says he does not understand, but he added that since the vote passed on Public Hearing #5 that the
matter would go forward.  


Commissioner Oddo asked, should the conditions discussed during Public Hearing #5 not be met, would
the rezoned property revert back to its original zoning.  County Attorney Dennis Davenport replied that the
property would not revert back to its original zoning, even if the conditions were not met, since the property
had just been rezoned.  He said if the conditions are not met then the Board could take action for rezoning.  


The motion to approve Petition No. RP-053-14, Danny Ray Reid, Owner, and Brian McCreary, Inc., Agent,
request to add one (1) lot to the Final Plat of Reid Estate, with said property being located in Land Lots 72
and 89 of the 7th District and fronting on Dogwood Trail passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


CONSENT AGENDA:


There were no items on the Consent Agenda.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no items of Old Business.







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 12


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mr. Don Wellman, County
Administrator Steve Rapson, and Commissioner Randy Ognio to the Fayette County Public
Facilities Authority for one-year terms beginning immediately and expiring July 23, 2015.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mr. Don
Wellman, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and Commissioner Randy Ognio to the Fayette County
Public Facilities Authority for one-year terms beginning immediately and expiring July 23, 2015. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Ognio abstaining from the vote.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Consideration of Resolution 2014-17 entitled “Resolution Authorizing Fayette County as a Pilot Site


in Metropolitan Atlanta for Autonomous Vehicle Design, Development, and Testing.”  


Chairman Brown had staff show two YouTube videos on autonomous vehicles and gave a brief summary of
his resolution.  He stated that the concept for autonomous vehicles had been around since the 1950s and
1960s but until recent times there had not been sufficient technological advancements to achieve the goal. 
He explained that the technology now exists and that Google has already run autonomous vehicles for
more than 800,000 miles on California’s highways.  He stated that there are already four states in the
United States that allow for testing autonomous vehicles, and he thought this technology was so vital that it
would become a multibillion dollar industry.  Chairman Brown suggested that by adopting the resolution,
Fayette County would embrace the ability to bring high-paying manufacturing jobs and technology jobs to
Fayette County that would build the components and software for the autonomous vehicles.  He added that
currently there are virtually no regulations on autonomous vehicles, so Fayette County could provide the
testing laboratory that would not only test and refine the technology but would implement the regulations. 
Chairman Brown also mentioned benefits associated with autonomous vehicles such as lower insurance
rates, lower traffic accidents, and the utilization of 30% of the current transportation infrastructure on
Georgia’s roads, highways, and interstates.  He further suggested that it would virtually eliminate the need
for paratransit, a high-cost transportation component needed for transporting the elderly and those unable
to drive.  He stated that should the resolution be adopted that the State of Georgia would still have to give
approval and issue guidelines to test the autonomous vehicles in Fayette County.


Commissioner Barlow asked Chairman Brown if this concept had been discussed with either the Fayette
County Development Authority or the Fayette County Public Works Department.  Chairman Brown replied
that he had spoken to Public Works Director Phil Mallon about this concept.  He stated that he also spoke
with Georgia State Representative Ed Setzler who serves as Chairman of the Technology Committee about
a month ago on this matter.  Chairman Brown reminded the Board that metropolitan Atlanta had missed an
opportunity when the internet industry came into being, and he urged Fayette County to provide an opening
for metropolitan Atlanta and Georgia to become the launching ground for autonomous vehicles. 
Commissioner Barlow replied that the resolution seemed innocuous, that it did not create harm, and that it
would allow companies to collaborate with Fayette County to test and develop autonomous vehicles and
their associated regulations.  


Commissioner Oddo said this autonomous vehicle technology would tend to keep everybody independent
since everybody liked to drive their own vehicles.  He said he did not want to get cooped up on more and
more traffic, and that this technology was attractive since it would help maintain that independence.  







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 13


Commissioner Ognio agreed that getting in on the front-end of policy setting for autonomous vehicles would
be good for Fayette County.  He said he could see a lot of issues already such as could a person operate
one without a license, how old would a person have to be to operate an autonomous vehicle, and other
issues.  Chairman Brown reiterated that passing the resolution was just the first step, but that the State of
Georgia would have to give an exemption from current laws and would have to create criteria under which
this is done.  He said if the legislature does not give an exemption, then this entire matter would end.  He
stated that passing this resolution would open the door for the State’s consideration.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio spoke in opposition to Resolution 2014-17 saying she was scared to death. 
She asked how much would it cost to reduce traffic congestion while saving the state and local
governments money.  She suggested that autonomous vehicles would cost more to manufacture, and they
would have some higher sales cost.  She stated that regulations would come from the state and federal
governments and questioned just how much influence Fayette County would have in setting regulations. 
Mrs. Ognio also expressed concerns about state and federal governments being involved since she had
never seen a government give something for free since they always want something back.  Chairman
Brown and Commissioner Ognio replied to Mrs. Ognio’s comments.


Angela Bean: Ms. Bean commented to Resolution 2014-17 saying she was not opposed to it so long as
the County remained cautious with its implementation.  She stated that she was addicted to her smart
phone even though the National Security Agency was listening to everything she said.  She reminded the
Board that technology is good but can be abused, and she stated that when the federal government is
involved that is “where we find the evil creeps in.”  She suggested that the technology is already present to
control vehicles by remote control, and that the control is done by entities that regulate themselves the
ability to control individuals’ lives.  She was concerned that this new technology would be controlled by a
federal government that could tell people when, where, how far, and how often they could move about.  She
cautioned the Board about public-private partnerships saying it opens the door to crony capitalism.  She
also suggested that Fayette County, as well as all counties, could push back on the federal government, as
written about in the book Restoring America: Starting One County at a Time.  She summarized her remarks
by saying she was not opposed to the resolution, that she appreciated the clarification that was given at the
meeting, and that the county needs to have less federal government intrusion in this matter.  Chairman
Brown replied to some of Ms. Bean’s comments.


Commissioner Barlow moved to adopt Resolution 2014-17 entitled “Resolution Authorizing Fayette County
as a Pilot Site in Metropolitan Atlanta for Autonomous Vehicle Design, Development, and Testing.” 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Copies of the request and Resolution 2014-17, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the July 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner Barlow was
not present for this meeting.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve the July 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Barlow abstaining from the vote.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop suggested that when a contractor is cutting into the water main that a Water System
employee should be present.  He stated that the fire hydrants in front of his house have been moved twice in the
past two weeks since they had to cut the pipes in front of his house.







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 14


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner stated he wanted to remember a coach at North Clayton High School, and he spoke in
remembrance of the coach.  He then stated that he thought Verizon would be interested in the autonomous vehicle
endeavor in Fayette County.  He said that Fayette County would continue to grow so long as it has people of vision
involved in it.  He spoke about how radio signals are good but limited due to trees, but he asked that the land not be
clear cut in order to accommodate radio signals. 


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Emergency Purchase Order and Request for Proposal: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the
County is currently finishing up its evaluation of water tanks as part of the analysis prescribed by the Consent Order. 
He stated that the evaluation had focused on the County’s two water plants but that it was now branching out
through the distribution system.  He said part of what the County has received from the preliminary report is that
there are five above-ground tanks and three ground-level tanks.  He stated that the County had to take one of the
tanks out of service for repairs, and he said he ordered an emergency Purchase Order for its repair.  He added that
the County is issuing a Request for Proposal (RFP) for maintenance for the remaining tanks.  He stated that the RFP
and the official approval to move funds for the emergency Purchase Order would be brought to the Board during the
August 28, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Real Estate and Approval of the June 26, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: County Attorney Dennis Davenport
stated that he had one item of Real Estate and the review of the June 26, 2014 Executive Session Minutes to be
discussed in Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow introduced his wife, Cherie, to the Board.  He also spoke in memory
of Reporter John Munford, of The Citizen, who passed away unexpectedly on Monday, July 21, 2014.  He spoke
about the friendship he had with Mr. Munford and spoke about how Mr. Munford was a great family man who will be
missed.  He showed several photos as he spoke in remembrance of Mr. Munford.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty stated that he has lost three friends this year including John
Munford.  He stated that while life will go on, John Munford would be missed.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he was shocked to hear of John Munford’s death.  He stated that
Mr. Munford was more than fair in his reporting.  He added that if a person talked to Mr. Munford that what was said
could likely find its way into an article.  He said John was always fair in his reporting and that he would be missed.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo said while nothing more remained to be said after Commissioner
Barlow’s comments; it still did not seem real that John Munford has passed away.  He said there was something
wrong with looking into the audience and not seeing John.  He mentioned that John was always smiling, that he was
a good guy, and that he took his job very seriously.  He added that this has been a very tough year for many people
that he knows, and that John’s death just makes it a lot tougher.  He extended his and his wife’s condolences to the
Munford family.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown told a story about John Munford during the time when he was serving as mayor
of Peachtree City and Steve Rapson was a council member.  He stated that John Munford was in the audience
during a time when a controversial item was being discussed, and that he was writing during the discussion. 
Chairman Brown related that Mr. Munford was obviously getting worked up about what was being said, and he
stopped being the reporter, ran up to the microphone, and began to speak passionately to the council.  He said the







Minutes
July 24, 2014
Page Number 15


council was so amazed that he would actually become so passionate on the topic, and that afterwards he asked Mr.
Munford if he was actually writing the news or trying to make the news.  He said John was an interesting person, that
he was loved by all, that he has a great family, and that the community looked forward to helping them all.  He told
the audience that Mr. Terry Garlock was taking donations on behalf of the Munford family.  Chairman Brown pointed
out that interns Kyra Parks and Vanessa Johnson were in the audience.  He added that Ms. Parks was put into
action after County Clerk Floyd Jones was called away on an emergency.  Chairman Brown stated that Ms. Parks
and Ms. Johnson were going to make a presentation during the August 14, 2014 meeting, and he encouraged
everyone to come to the meeting. 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


One Real Estate Item and Review of June 26, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to
retire to Executive Session.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 9:15 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:25
p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of the Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to
return into Official Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session
Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Sale of Fire Station #7 Located in Woolsey, Georgia:  Chairman Brown moved to approve the sale for Bid #905,
Parcel ID# 0443-016, that is located at 273 Hampton Road, Fayetteville, Georgia, for the amount of $83,760.00, with
the winning bidder being Mr. Kenneth N. Wright of CFI, Incorporated.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Approval of the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved
to approve the June 26, 2014 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the July 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The July 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:26 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
  Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk                                         Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 14th day of August 2014.


___________________________________
  Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


August 14, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Vice Chairman  Charles Oddo
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation recognizing the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee and to
Proclaim the Month of September as Cancer Wellness Month.


2. Recognition of the Association of Village Pride, Inc. (AVPRIDE), Career
Exploration / Internship Program.


3. Recognition of Ms. Jordan Fason and Ms. Cameron King for being
selected to represent Fayette County in the Model Atlanta Regional
Commission (MARC) program.


4. Recognition of the Sandy Creek High School Future Business Leaders of
America (FBLA) club for placing in the top ten at the FBLA National
Leadership Conference.


5. Proclamation honoring Frank and Melba Gardner who are celebrating their
58th Wedding Anniversary.


PUBLIC HEARING:


CONSENT AGENDA:


6. Approval of staff’s request for a FY 2015 budget adjustment of $50,000.00
to be added to Personal Property Tax revenue and the Tax Assessor’s
technical services in order to contract with an outside firm that will assist
with audits of Personal Property accounts.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the
annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, as
required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States
Department of the Treasury.


8. Approval of the Water System’s request to award Bid #900- Water
Distribution Parts to eight companies that were low bidders on items used
for distribution and repair in an aggregate amount not to exceed
$256,709.30.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 14, 2014
Page Number 2


9. Approval of the July 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint John Culbreath to the McIntosh
Trail Community Service Board, for a three-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2017.


11. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Karen Spangle to the Fayette
County Department of Family and Children Services Board, for a five-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and
expiring June 30, 2019.


12. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Briana MacDowell to Post 2 of the
Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four-year term, beginning June 1, 2014 and expiring May 31,
2018.


13. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Bradley Klinger to Post 5 of the
Fayette County Recreation Commission, to fill an unexpired term, beginning April 11, 2014 and expiring
March 31, 2016.


14. Consideration of staff’s request to enter into an agreement with Hopeful Community Club for the purpose of
preserving the Hopeful Primitive Church.


15. Discussion of the Fayette County’s interns’ findings and options concerning a safe golf path and crossing for
the Starr’s Mill school complex along Redwine Road.


16. Discussion of the Fayette County’s interns’ findings and options concerning fluoride in Fayette County’s
water supply.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #14


Administration Kyra Parks and Vanessa Johnson


Consideration of staff's request to enter into an agreement with Hopeful Community Club for the purpose of preserving the Hopeful 


Primitive Church.


Hopeful Primitive Church was created by Fayette County pioneers nearly 200 years ago at the time John Quincy Adams was elected 


President of the United States. The church provided a sacred ground for Fayette County residents. Today, the church and its cemetery 


are a significant part of the history of the county since there are grave sites of veterans of the American Revolutionary War and the Civil 


War, Native Americans, and African American slaves at the cemetery.  


 


The church is constructed in the same classical style utilized for the ancient Parthenon that is still standing in Greece.  Just as the 


Parthenon is a significant structure in Greek culture, so this church stands as a significant testament to Fayette County's history. 


 


The proposed agreement between Fayette County, Georgia and Hopeful Community Club (non-profit 501-C-3) will authorize both parties 


to work together to preserve the history of Hopeful Primitive Church and its cemetery through the creation of the Hopeful Primitive Church 


Park.  


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Hopeful Community Club as it relates to the preservation of 


Hopeful Primitive Baptist Church as a historical site in Fayette County.


Not Applicable. Taxpayers' dollars cannot be used to fund the restoration project.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Interns Kyra Parks and Vanessa Johnson were tasked with the Hopeful Primitive Church Park proposal.  Their work in preparing the 


recommended agreement involved consulting with appropriate county departments, Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown, 


and representatives of the Hopeful Community Club.


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business







1 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


HOPEFUL PRIMITIVE CHURCH AGREEMENT 


 THIS AGREEMENT entered into this ____ day of _______________, 2014, by and 


between FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, 


acting by and through its Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and 


HOPEFUL COMMUNITY CLUB, INC., a duly organized non-profit Georgia corporation, 


acting by and through its Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as “HCC”, for the purpose of 


preserving that historically significant structure in Fayette County known as the Hopeful 


Primitive Church, hereinafter the “Agreement”. 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


 WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners is the duly elected governing 


authority of the County and is empowered to enter into this Agreement; and 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of HCC is the duly elected governing authority of 


HCC and is empowered to enter into this Agreement; and 


WHEREAS, HCC owns certain property in Fayette County upon which rests the 


structure known as the Hopeful Primitive Church, hereinafter the “Church”, the Church and the 


property upon which the Church is located hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Premises”; 


and 


WHEREAS, the Church was created by Fayette County pioneer families in 1825, 


providing a sacred place for worship and a meeting house for community activities; and 







2 


 


WHEREAS, the Church’s cemetery contains notable grave sites of veterans of the 


Revolutionary War, the Civil War, and other major conflicts, making this site one of the most 


significant historical gems in all of Fayette County; and 


WHEREAS, the building’s architecture follows the classic style known as the “Golden 


Proportion”, which is identified with ancient historical landmarks, such as the Parthenon; just as 


the Parthenon was constructed by hand by the ancient Greeks as a place of significance in their 


community, so, too, was the Hopeful Primitive Church as a place that was at the center of rural 


Fayette County culture; and 


WHEREAS, the Church was built:  at the same time as John Quincy Adams was elected 


as the sixth President of the United States; at the same time the United States Congress approved 


the Indian Territory (present-day Oklahoma), and following the signing by Chief William 


McIntosh of the Treaty of Indian Springs clearing the way for the forced relocation of Georgia’s 


Indians on the “Trail of Tears”; and at the same time the Marquis de LaFayette landed in the port 


of Savannah to dedicate a memorial honoring Revolutionary War Hero General Nathanael 


Greene; and 


WHEREAS, it is a duty of all citizens in any society to preserve and restore important 


connections to its past; and 


WHEREAS, the Church will serve as an historical resource for historians, the Fayette 


County School System, citizens and visitors; and 


 WHEREAS, the Church is an historically significant structure located in Fayette County 


and the County and HCC desire to work together, as described within this Agreement, for the 


preservation of the Church. 







3 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, 


and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 


acknowledged by the County and HCC, the County and HCC hereby agree as follows: 


1. 


 HCC shall complete a survey of the Premises, with said survey depicting all structures 


and buildings located on the Premises. 


2. 


 The Church is located on a more or less rectangular-shaped lot at the southeast corner of 


State Route 92 and New Hope Road.  Currently the Church is accessible from both State Route 


92 and New Hope Road.  HCC desires to eliminate the access from State Route 92 so that the 


Church is only accessible from New Hope Road.  The County agrees to work with HCC to 


facilitate discussions with the Georgia Department of Transportation, hereinafter “GDOT”, to 


eliminate access to the Church from State Route 92. 


3. 


 Access to the Church on New Hope Road is in close proximity to State Route 92.  HCC 


desires to move the access to the Church along New Hope Road in an easterly direction from the 


intersection of State Route 92 to promote safe access to the Church.  The County agrees to work 


with HCC to determine what permits are necessary as well as to review the proposal for a new 


curb cut along New Hope Road to provide access to the Church.  To the extent it becomes 


necessary to involve GDOT in this process, the County will facilitate discussions with GDOT 


during this process.  HCC agrees it will remove the current access to the Church along New 


Hope Road once the new access along New Hope Road is fully functioning. 


 







4 


 


4. 


The Church’s cemetery contains grave sites along the frontage of State Route 92.  To the 


extent there are trees within the right-of-way of State Route 92, the County agrees to work with 


HCC to facilitate discussions with GDOT for the removal of those trees in the right-of-way of 


State Route 92 along the frontage of the Church property. 


5. 


 HCC shall maintain the Premises and allow Fayette County citizens full access to the 


Premises as an historical landmark and passive park. 


6. 


 HCC will indemnify and hold harmless the County and its agents and employees from 


and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorney’s fees arising out of or 


resulting from the performance of this Agreement, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or 


expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction 


of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom; and is caused in whole or in 


part by any negligent or willful act or omission of HCC, anyone directly or indirectly employed 


by HCC, or anyone for whose acts HCC may be liable. 


7. 


 All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be mailed or delivered to the following 


addresses, or such other address, as the County or HCC may designate in writing: 


 If to the County: 


  County Administrator 


  140 Stonewall Avenue, West 


  Fayetteville, Georgia   30214 







5 


 


 If to HCC: 


  Club Chairman 


  1255 Forrest Avenue 


  Fayetteville, Georgia   30214 


8. 


 This Agreement shall be for one (1) year commencing on the date first above written.  


This Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional one (1)-year term provided neither 


the County nor HCC provides written notice to terminate this Agreement.  The County or HCC 


may terminate this document by providing 30-days written notice to the other. 


9. 


 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the County and HCC, and all 


agreements, oral or otherwise, between the County and HCC not embodied in this Agreement 


shall be of no force or effect.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any respect 


except by a written agreement executed by the County and HCC in the same manner as this 


Agreement has been executed. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







6 


 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective duly 


authorized official to execute, seal and deliver this Agreement, all as of the day and year first 


above written. 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


(SEAL) 


 


      By: ____________________________________ 


ATTEST: 


 


 


________________________________ 


County Clerk 


      HOPEFUL COMMUNITY CLUB, INC. 


 


(SEAL) 


 


      By: ____________________________________ 


ATTEST: 


 


 


________________________________ 


___________________ 


  







7 


 


MEMORANDUM ADDRESSING THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 


FAYETTE COUNTY AND HOPEFUL COMMUNITY CLUB, INC. WITH A REAL 


PROPERTY TRANSFER 


 


 During a meeting between representatives from Fayette County and the Hopeful 


Community Club, Inc., a discussion occurred concerning the ownership of the property where 


the Hopeful Primitive Church is located.  The County asked whether Hopeful Community Club, 


Inc. would be interested in selling the property to the County, or entering into a long-term lease 


with the County.  The representatives from Hopeful Community Club, Inc. stated they did not 


believe that there was any interest in selling the property or entering into a long-term lease.  


However, they did want to know what difference this would make in the relationship if they did 


decide to sell or enter into a long-term lease. 


 


 The County is limited in its use of taxpayer dollars. If the County owned the Church 


property the County would have no restrictions on its use of taxpayer dollars.  In that instance, 


the County would only be limited by whatever budget it sets to improve and preserve the 


premises.  Similar with a long-term lease, however, the length of the lease would have to be long 


enough for the County to receive the benefit of whatever taxpayer dollars were put into the 


property.  For example, if the County constructed a structure on the premises and the useful life 


of that structure was 50 years, the lease would need to be at least that long. 


 


 An ownership interest by the County changes the relationship substantially.  If there are 


specific questions or concerns the County would be happy to entertain those at your 


convenience. 





		Administration- Hopeful Primi...ptist Agenda Request File

		Administration- Hopeful Primitive Baptist Backup

		Administration- Hopeful Primitive Baptist Church Agreement-1

		Administration- Hopeful Primitive Baptist Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #2


Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of the Association of Village Pride, Inc. (AVPRIDE), Career Exploration / Internship Program.


The Association of Village PRIDE, Inc. (AVPRIDE) was established in the fall of 1996 by a group of Fayette County citizens, from a 


variety of backgrounds, who came together to discuss what could be done as parents and community members to help children prepare 


themselves to be successful in the global economy. 


 


The AVPRIDE program offers workshops for resume writing, work place etiquette, work place ethics, dress for success, understanding 


the workplace and decoding the hidden rules, the importance of a mentor, effective interview techniques and mandatory mock interviews. 


 


Twenty-four (24) students participated in AVPRIDE's Career Exploration Program during the summer. 


 


Mrs. Pota Coston has been asked to receive this recognition on behalf of the program.


Recognition of the Association of Village Pride, Inc. (AVPRIDE), Career Exploration / Internship Program.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 


 


The AVPRIDE Career Exploration/Internship Program


Fact Sheet


The goal of the Career Exploration/Internship Program is to provide students the opportunity to explore


their desired career fields. Students participating in this program will gain valuable insights and


preparation for a successful internship opportunity in their career field of interest.


Objectives


• To provide the students a forum to learn and prepare for the workplace environment and tips


for a successful internship experience


• To provide the selected intern student, the opportunity to engage and observe firsthand the


occupational roles and responsibilities required for specific career fields


• To provide students the chance to learn about specific job skills and educational requirements


for their desired career interests


• To create an internship experience that provide students with information to consider when


selecting potential career fields


Workshop Topics


Workshops will include but are not limited to resume writing, work place etiquette, work place ethics,


dress for success, understanding the workplace & decoding the hidden rules, the importance of a


mentor and effective interview techniques.


Mandatory Mock Interviews will also be conducted to provide students interviewing practice and tips.


Internship Term


Internship is for the duration between two to six weeks during the summer break. Internship


placements will be in Fayette County.


Contact Information


The Youth Workforce Development Program Director is Mrs. Pota Coston. Please contact Mrs. Coston at


770-716-2797 (office) or 703-731-7955 (cell) if you have questions or need additional information


regarding this program.







 


AVPRIDE Career Exploration/Internship Program 


Recognition  
 


WHEREAS, The Association of Village PRIDE, Inc. (AVPRIDE) was established in the fall of 1996 by a group of Fayette County 
citizens, from a variety of backgrounds, who came together to discuss what could be done as parents and community 
members to help children prepare themselves to be successful in the global economy; and 


 


WHEREAS, AVPRIDE, Inc. realized they could not fully accomplish the mission without serious community collaboration; and   
 


WHEREAS,  They decided to reach out to the greater Fayette Community to seek strategic partnerships while addressing some of 
the issues that were identified through the collection and analysis of local data and information; and 


 


WHEREAS,  “The mission of the Association of Village PRIDE, Inc. is to assist Fayette County youth to become conscientious and 
productive citizens of society who will make significant contributions to their community”; and  


 


WHEREAS, The AVPRIDE Career Exploration/Internship Program was created to provide students the opportunity to explore 
their desired career fields; and  
 


WHEREAS,  The objectives of the program include providing students a forum to learn and prepare for the workplace 
environment, and providing opportunities to engage and observe firsthand the occupational roles and responsibilities 
that are required for specific career fields; and   


 


WHEREAS, The AVPRIDE Career Exploration/Internship Program offers workshops for resume writing, work place etiquette, 
work place ethics, dress for success, understanding the workplace and decoding the hidden rules, the importance of 
a mentor, effective interview techniques, and mandatory mock interviews; and  


 


WHEREAS, The internship placements are in Fayette County and last between two to six weeks during the summer break; and 
 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners recognize the mission of Association of Village PRIDE, Inc. 
Career Exploration/Internship Program and in doing so, we encourage all citizens to support this program in its endeavor to help all 
children develop their present skills for a better future. 
 
 


So proclaimed this 26th day of July 2014 


 


 


 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
        ________________________ 


      David Barlow, County Commissioner  





		Commissioners- AVPride Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- AVPride Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #1


Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Proclamation recognizing the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee and to Proclaim the Month of September 2014 as Cancer Wellness 


Month.


The Cancer Wellness Walk is a 5k walk that is sponsored by many individuals and businesses throughout Fayette County.  The walk is 


designed to raise donations for the Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital. 


 


Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital operates on donations, such as those raised by the Cancer 


Wellness Walk, and it provides those who live with cancer, and their loved ones, with complimentary programs such as Support Groups, 


Stress Reduction classes, Expressive Arts classes, Nutritional and Educational Workshops, and Exercise and Fitness Classes. 


 


This year's Cancer Wellness Walk will occur on Saturday, August 23, 2014 at Drake Field, beginning at 9:00 a.m. 


 


Mrs. Vicki Turner, along with other members of the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee, will received the Proclamation on behalf of the 


committee.


Present proclamation to the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee and proclaim the Month of September 2014 as Cancer Wellness Month.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This proclamation / recognition has been issued to the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee annually since 2012.


Thursday, August 14, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 
 


PROCLAMATION�


 
SEPTEMBER 2014 AS CANCER WELLNESS MONTH 


 
Whereas, today, millions of people are either living with cancer or have experienced cancer; and 
 
Whereas, cancer is a general name for a group of over 100 diseases that have affected the lives of men, women, and children 


throughout Fayette County, the United States, and the world, and 
 
Whereas, those who have experienced cancer, directly or indirectly, are keenly aware of the physical, mental, spiritual, societal, 


and financial setbacks and trials that so easily accompany this illness; and 
 
Whereas, Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital assists those with cancer, and their 


loved ones, by providing complimentary, comprehensive, and professionally-led programs such as Support Groups, 
Stress Reduction classes, Expressive Arts; Nutritional and Educational Workshops, and Exercise and Fitness 
Classes, and 


 
Whereas, Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital is able to provide these services through 


partnership with the community, whose citizens make large and small donations, with each donation going 
exclusively to the benefit of families and loved ones who are affected by cancer; and 


 
Whereas, the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee, which is comprised of individuals and businesses throughout Fayette County, 


including The Southern Credit Union and leaders throughout Fayette County, sponsors a 5K Cancer Wellness Walk 
each year to raise donations for The Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital; and 


 
Whereas, the Cancer Wellness Walk will occur on Saturday, August 23, 2014 at Drake Field in Peachtree City at 9:00 a.m.; and 
 
Whereas, Donations to the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee will be donated to Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness 


at Piedmont Fayette Hospital; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
publically recognizes and thanks the  


 


Cancer Wellness Walk Committee of Fayette County  
and 


Proclaims the Month of September 2014 as Cancer Wellness Month 
 
and we call upon all Fayette County citizens to support the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee by contributing their time, talents, and 
treasures, or by directly supporting Thomas F. Chapman Family Cancer Wellness at Piedmont Fayette Hospital. 
 


So recognized this 14th day of August 2014 
 
 
 


____________________________________ 
Steve Brown, Chairman 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners 





		Commissioners- Cancer Wellnes...ittee Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Cancer Wellness Walk Committee Backup- August 23 Walk






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #11


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint Karen Spangler to the Fayette County Department of Family 


and Children Services Board, for a five-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2019.


The mission of the Georgia Department of Human Resources is to strengthen Georgia's families by supporting their self-sufficiency and 


helping them protect vulnerable children and adults by being a resource for families; not a substitute. County Boards help to achieve the 


mission by making the Division of Family and Children's Services programs more meaningful to the families and children they are 


designed to serve. With the help of Board Members, the Division of Family and Children Services will help disadvantaged individuals and 


families progress toward independence in many aspects of their lives. 


 


Fayette County's Board of Family and Children Services is made up of five volunteering citizens from across the county. Each member 


has been appointed to the Board by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners for a five-year term. Each Board member serves as a 


link between the County's Department of Family and Children's Services and the local Fayette County community. 


 


Karen Spangle's term expired on June 30, 2014. Fayette County advertised to fill the vacancy and received five applicants. The Selection 


Committee comprised of Chairman Steve Brown, Commissioner David Barlow, DFCS Director Susan Boggs, and Captain Pete Nelms 


interviewed each candidate. The Selection Committee has recommended Karen Spangler for reappointment beginning July 1, 2014 and 


expiring June 30, 2019.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint Karen Spangler to the Fayette County Department of Family and 


Children Services Board, for a five-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2019.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business

























		Commissioners- DFCS Board Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- DFCS Board Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #16


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion of the Fayette County's interns' findings and options concerning fluoride in Fayette County's water supply.


During the month of July, Fayette County interns John Hlas and Haider Khan researched the use of fluoride in Fayette County's water 


supply, and they will offer some options to the Board concerning future fluoride use in Fayette County's water supply. 


 


The interns read extensive studies, articles, and books, and they met with a variety of professionals ranging from regional medical 


doctors to personnel at the Fayette County Water System in order to formulate the options that will be presented.


Direction from the Board of Commissioners on how to proceed with recommendations pertaining to fluoride in Fayette County's water 


supply.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business







Fluoridation of our Water
By


John Hlas
Haider Khan







Why are We Here?


One Word,


Controversy







Books Read During Research  







● Naturally occurring salt
● Formed when Fluorine, the element, 


combines with minerals in soil or rocks
● Primarily used for prevention of tooth decay


"Basic Information about Fluoride in Drinking Water." Home. EPA, 23 July 2013. Web. 13 July 2014.


What is Fluoride?







● In the 1940s, scientists discovered that people 
who lived where drinking water had 1 ppm 
fluoride or more had fewer dental cavities than 
people who lived where fluoride levels in 
drinking water were lower (fluoride is naturally 
found in soil and water at varying degrees). 
Many studies have supported this.


http://www.cancer.gov/cancertopics/factsheet/Risk/fluoridated-water


History of fluoride







History of fluoride
● On 25th January 1945, Grand Rapids, 


Michigan, became the first town in the world 
to be artificially fluoridated. 


● On June 1, 1950, the U.S Public Health 
Service endorsed fluoridation without much 
fanfare, only being put as a small item on the 
ADA Newsletter (pg. 78).


● Source: The Case Against Fluoride
● http://www.nature.com/bdj/journal/v199/n7s/full/4812863a.html







"Sweden rejected fluoridation in the 1970s and, in this excellent book 


[The Case Against Fluoride], these three scientists have confirmed the 


wisdom of that decision. Our children have not suffered greater tooth 


decay, as World Health Organization figures attest, and in turn our 


citizens have not borne the other hazards fluoride may cause. In any 


case, since fluoride is readily available in toothpaste, you don't have to 


force it on people.“


--Arvid Carlsson, Nobel Laureate in Medicine or Physiology (2000) and 


Emeritus Professor of Pharmacology, University of Gothenburg


“You don’t have to force it on 
people”







Only Countries where over half of their 
population drinks fluoridated water


Brunei         Singapore    
Australia      New Zealand
Chile            U.S
Malaysia      Israel
Ireland         Hong Kong


http://www.bfsweb.org/onemillion/onemillion2012.html







Countries that Don’t Fluoridate Their 
Water (not limited to)


Japan, Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Germany, 
Finland, France, Sweden, etc.
Department of Community Dentistry and Public Health, Tsurumi University, Yokohama, Japan


Tomioka-Kanra Dental Association, Tomioka, Japan


http://books.google.com/books?id=IZaaWuNbiAkC&pg=RA2-PT136&lpg=RA2-


PT136&dq=West+Germany+fluoride&source=bl&ots=B2M67Yrd5b&sig=af7q6h56d9SZOwC8PlPOr4ho_qw&hl=en&sa=X&ei=FO-


_U97LIs20yASIv4KwBQ&ved=0CE0Q6AEwCQ#v=onepage&q=West%20Germany%20fluoride&f=false


"." Editorial. Wall Street Journal east. ed. 24 Oct. 2003: A14. Print.
Eisenhut, M. Fluoridation of Drinking Water." Letter to Eugene Albright. 28 Feb. 2010. MS. Belgaqua, Brussels, Belgium.
Legros, ChrisLetter to Eugene Albright. 2 Feb. 200. MS. Gas Wasser, Vienna, Austria.
Werner, KlausLetter to Eugene Albright. 22 Dec. 1999. MS. Royal Danish Embassy, Washington D.C, U.S.
Hisviirta, Leena, Letter to Eugene Albright. 7 Feb. 2000. MS. Helsinki Water, Helsinki, Finland.
"One in a Million: The Facts about Water Fluoridation." British Fluoridation Society. British Fluoridation Society, Nov. 2012. Web. 10 July 2014.
Sanchez, L. Letter to Eugene Albright. 26 Oct. 2000. MS. Direction De La Protection De L'enviorment, Paris, France.
Khan, Gerda H. Letter to A.R Smith. N.d. MS. Embassy of F.R Germany, London, England.
Guzikowski, Gummar. Letter to Eugene Albright. 28 Feb. 2000. MS. National Food Administration, Uppsala, Sweden







● Most developed countries do not fluoridate 
their water.


● Developed countries with fluoridated water 
do not have less tooth decay than non-
fluoridated countries. 


"One in a Million: The Facts about Water Fluoridation." British Fluoridation Society. British Fluoridation Society, Nov. 2012. Web. 10 July 2014.
"EURO." Oral Health Database. Malmö University, n.d. Web. 10 July 2014.


Facts about Fluoride







Fluoride helps prevent tooth decay because 
“Fluoride concentrated in plaque and saliva 
inhibits the demineralization of sound enamel 
and enhances the remineralization (i.e., 
recovery) of demineralized enamel (12,13).”


"Recommendations for Using Fluoride to Prevent and Control Dental Caries in the United States." Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 17 Aug. 2001. Web. 29 July 2014.







Swallowing fluoride provides little benefit for 
teeth


“Laboratory and epidemiologic research suggests 
that fluoride prevents dental caries predominantly 
after eruption of the tooth into the mouth, and its 
actions primarily are topical for both adults and 
children.”


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 22 Oct. 1999. Web. 07 July 2014.







Products which contain fluoride







● Fluoride has no benefits for infants
● The only clear negative side effect of 


excessive fluoride is dental Fluorosis
● Dental Fluorosis generally occurs in children 


ages 8 years and younger; “this is when 
permanent teeth are developing under the 
gums.”


"Water-related Diseases." WHO. World Health Organization, n.d. Web. 10 July 2014.
"FAQs for Dental Fluorosis." Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 10 July 2013. Web. 08 July 2014.











Many studies show that tooth decay rates stay 
the same or go down after fluoridation is 
discontinued. 


Some examples of study locations which affirm this are 
Kuopio (Finland), LaSalud (Cuba), Chemnitz and Plauen 


(East Germany), Durham (North Carolina), British 
Columbia (Canada), and Tiel and Culemborg 


(Netherlands).
Seppä, L., Käarkkäiinen S., Hausen H. "Caries Trends 1992-1998 in Two Low-fluoride Finnish Towns Formerly with and without Fluoridation." National Center for Biotechnology 
Information. U.S. National Library of Medicine, Nov.-Dec. 2000. Web. 10 July 2014.
Künzel, W., Fischer, T."Caries Prevalence after Cessation of Water Fluoridation in La Salud, Cuba." National Center for Biotechnology Information. U.S. National Library 
of Medicine, Jan.-Feb. 2000. Web. 10 July 2014.
Künzel, W., Fischer, T., Lorenz R., Brühmann S., "Decline of Caries Prevalence after the Cessation of Water Fluoridation in the Former East Germany." 


National Center for Biotechnology Information. U.S. National Library of Medicine, Oct. 2000. Web. 10 July 2014.
Burt, BA., Keels MA., Heller KE., "The Effects of a Break in Water Fluoridation on the Development of Dental Caries and Fluorosis." 


National Center for Biotechnology Information. U.S. National Library of Medicine, Feb. 2000. Web. 10 July 2014.







Some studies suggest that tooth decay may 
increase with discontinued water fluoridation


● The Antigo, Wisconsin Case:
o After Five and Half Years without optimal levels of 


flouride, 
� Second grade children had over 200% more 


decay,
� Fourth graders 70% more decay,
� Sixth graders 91% more decay,


The City reinstated water fluoridation based on the effect 
on childrens’ health.


Source- Dixianne Parker, RDH, MEd- Fluoridation Specialist







Dental Fluorosis







Treatment for Fluorosis 


● Bleaching
● Crowning 


http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2883808/#CIT27







● So are There Benefits for the Practice?
o “[...] tooth decay has decreased from 6.2 to 2.6”
o “[...] that water fluoridation prevented between 30%-


50% of tooth decay in children” 
o Provides fluoride to those who cannot afford it in 


other sources


Sources- Scientific American and NALBOH  







Does Fluoridated Water Cause This?


● Alzheimer’s ---- Data Indicates No Correlation  
Alzheimer’s Association. 2012Report.2012.Alzheimer’sAssocoation.2012.Web.9 July 2014


● ADHD ---- Data Indicates No Correlation
CDC.CDC.gov. 2012. Center for Disease Control, 2012. Web. 7 July 2014.


● Arthritis ---- Data Indicates No Correlation
CDC.CDC.gov. 2012. Center for Disease Control, 2012. Web. 7 July 2014.







● Chinese meta-analysis with Harvard
o “[...] all [27] but one study suggest that high fluoride content in 


water may negatively affect cognitive development”(Page 1)
Dwyer, Marge. Harvard School of Public Health. 25 July, 2012. HSPH, 2012. 


Web. 8 July, 2014.


● GA Health Policy Center 
o “Studies in China [...] have questionable study designs. Studies 


in Mexico and the US suggest fluoridation has no correlation 
with IQ”(Page 3).


Georgia Health Policy Center, Georgia State University, National Research Council 


Health Effects of Ingested Fluoride. July 2011. GAHPC, 2011. Web. 9 July, 2014.


Studies on Fluoride in Relation IQ 







The City of Dallas


● Although, water fluoridation had been 
proposed to be removed- this proposition did 
not pass
o Final Vote: 


� 28.7%-For    
� 71.2%-Against 


Source: The City of Dallas Records Office 







Pinellas, Fl. and Suffolk, Ny. Counties 


Pinellas County
Approved Water 


Fluoridation
on


Nov. 29, 2012, with 
implementation on March 1, 


2013 


Suffolk County
-No-


Fluoride is not added into 
the water supply







The Cost of Fluoridated Water 


● The City of Dallas- 25 cents per person per 
year (Est. $600,000).
Source: The City of Dallas Secretary Records


● In Fayette County- 30 cents per person per 
year (Est. $23,439).
Source: Mr. Lee Pope, Water System Director







Studies on the Cost of Fluoridated Water


“A peer reviewed CDC study found that , in 
communities with more than 20,000 residents, 
every $1 that is invested in community water 
fluoridation about $38 in savings a year from 


fewer cavities treated”
● Colorado and Analyses’ Studies
From Scientific American and NALBOH Study    







Gov. Departments and 
Organizations  


These organizations support fluoridated water:
-(But not limited to)-


● American Dental Association (ADA)
● Center for Disease Control (CDC)


o “CDC promotes effective public health practices, such as 
community water fluoridation.” 


● The World Health Organization (WHO)
● American Medical Association (AMA)
● The American Water Works Association (AWWA)


● The Canadian Medical Association (CMA)
Sources: The Gov. Departments and Organizations Websites







Options 


1. Keep Fluoride in the Water
2. Solicit a petition for a referendum on the 


Discontinuation of Water Fluoridation
3. A Plan to Please Both Sides: 


o (O.C.G.A./12-5-175)- allow people to get fluoride 
removing pumps who want flouride out of their water 
and keep fluoridated water in the community.      





		Commissioners- Fluoride Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Fluoride Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #15


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion of the Fayette County's interns' findings and options concerning a safe golf cart path and crossing for the Starr's Mill school 


complex along Redwine Road.


During the month of July, Fayette County interns Tessa Strickland and Khalil Coleman researched options that would provide safer 


passage for golf carts to the public schools along Redwine Road. 


 


The interns consulted with various county staff, the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, and Board of Education personnel who provided 


insights and guidance on this matter. 


 


The interns will present their findings and options to the Board of Commissioners for direction on how to proceed with this matter.


Direction from the Board of Commissioners on how to proceed with options concerning a safe golf cart path and crossing for the school 


complex along Redwine Road.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business







By: Tessa Strickland and                   


Khalil Coleman


CROSSING


PANTHER


CROSSING











The 2013 interns proposed to the Board of


Commissioners that Peachtree City and Fayette


County have unified their golf cart ordinances.


The Board of Commissioners approved a new


ordinance, allowing Fayette County citizens that


are fifteen-year old with a valid learners permit


can drive a golf cart within Fayette County.


A Brief History… 







Existing path


Existing crosswalk







McIntosh High School: A Success Story







McIntosh High School: 


Separate parking lot for golf carts. The creation
of the parking has great benefits such as:


• Increased revenue at school


• Allowed students to commute to school
instead of inconveniencing a parent.


• 300-400 Golf carts are parked here.


• Decreased traffic on the roads.







Our project’s mission: 


Complete a safe multi-use path connecting


subdivisions on Redwine Road to the Starr’s Mill


Complex.


A. Propose effective ways to reduce the speed


on Redwine Road to allow for safe crossing.


B. Propose ways to reduce speed on Panther


Path to allow safe golf cart crossings.







School Speed Zone


• Reduce the speed limit in the school zone on


Redwine Road to 25 MPH


• 80% of schools in Fayette County have a


school speed zone of 25 MPH


• The slower the cars are traveling in the school


zone, the safer it is for the students







Suggested Enhancements  


Foreston Place


• Median/Safe Island


Redwine Road:


• 3 Dimensional Crosswalk


• Median/Safe Island


• Controlled Intersection


Panther Path:


• Speed Table


• Repositioning of Crosswalk







Add 


median 


with a 


safe zone 


to 


Foreston 


Place 


crossing







Add


path







New 


Crossing







New 


Crossing 


with 


speed 


table







Redwine Road


3 Dimensional Crosswalk


The appearance of a raised crosswalk from a


distance; however, the crossing is actually a flat


surface just like any other crosswalk.







Redwine Road


Median/Safe Island


A median is a raised concrete divider between


the lanes of opposing traffic on a road.







On Redwine Road at Panther Path


Controlled Intersection


We currently have the intersection directed by a


Sheriff’s Deputy to control the flow of traffic. The


Deputy combined with other proposals will ensure


maximum safety for all students.







Panther Path


Speed Table


A speed table is a raised table that is leveled off


on top and forces drivers to reduce speed.







Panther Path


Repositioning of Crosswalk


We have the idea of moving the existing


crosswalk further up Panther Path so that the


traffic can be more controlled, because of the 3-


way stop found closer to Starr's Mill High School.







Existing Crossing 


Proposed Crossing















Final Analysis


• Reduce Redwine Road school zone speed to 25 MPH during


school zone hours.


• 2,500 feet expansion of the path system on Redwine Road.


• New crossing at Redwine Road near the controlled


intersection where the Sheriff’s Deputy is present that


includes a median/safe island. We would also like to add a 3-D


crosswalk.


• New crossing location on Panther Path that includes a speed


table that will slow traffic and allow for safer cart crossings.





		Commissioners- Golf Carts Redwine Road Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Golf Carts Redwine Road Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #3


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of  Ms. Jordan Fason and Ms. Cameron King for being selected to represent Fayette County in the Model Atlanta Regional 


Commission (MARC) program.


The Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) program is an award-winning youth leadership program that brings together 50 teens 


from all 10 counties in the metropolitan Atlanta region for six months of study, debate and hands-on activities regarding regional issues 


and challenges.  The program is now in its 17th year and presents students with the opportunity to learn about challenges in 


transportation, air quality, human services, land use, and water supply and quality.  Students forms committees and develop a possible 


solution to these challenges.  The students then present their resolution to the Atlanta Regional Commission for consideration.  A student 


must be a rising sophomore or junior to apply for the MARC program.  


 


Ms. Jordan Fason, is a rising junior at Sandy Creek High School who lives in Tyrone.  Jordan's emphasis is on "the need to continue and 


enhance the goals of the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) with their concentration on lifelong community development and access to 


services." 


 


Ms. Cameron King, a rising sophomore who attends Sandy Creek High School, is passionate about finding ways to change the waste 


management system in Atlanta.


Recognition of  Ms. Jordan Fason and Ms. Cameron King for being selected to represent Fayette County in the Model Atlanta Regional 


Commission (MARC) program.


Not Applicable.


Yes Last year


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of Fayette County joining with its regional partners in preparing tomorrow's leaders for current and future challenges. 


August 14, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #10


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint John Culbreath to the McIntosh Trail Community Service 


Board, for a three-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2017.


The McIntosh Trail Community Service Board (MTCSB) is a public entity created by the Georgia legislature in 1993 to provide mental 


health, developmental disability, and addictive disease services. Services are available to residents in Butts, Fayette, Henry, Lamar, 


Pike, Spalding and Upson Counties. The agency is headquartered in Griffin, and works under the Region 3 Board and under the statues 


of the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Development Disabilities. 


 


Reverend John Culbreath was appointed to fill an unexpired term on the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board on May 23, 2013 after 


Ms. Terri Willis's resignation.  Reverend Culbreath's term expired on June 30, 2014.  Fayette County advertised the vacant position and 


received four applications.  The Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner Allen McCarty, 


interviewed each applicant.   


 


The Selection Committee recommends the reappointment of Reverend Culbreath for a full term, comprised of three years, to the 


McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint John Culbreath to the McIntosh Trail Community Service 


Board, for a three-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2017.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Commissioner David Barlow was recently appointed to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board on June 12, 2014. 


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business













		Commissioners- McIntosh Trail Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- McIntosh Trail Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #12


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Briana MacDowell to Post 2 of the Fayette County Recreation 


Commission, for a four-year term, beginning June 1, 2014 and expiring May 31, 2018.


The Fayette County Recreation Commission is a citizen committee, comprised of five volunteers, who are appointed by the Fayette 


County Board of Commissioners, which reviews and evaluates programs, facilities, policies, and other matters and makes 


recommendations to the Recreation Department, the County Administrator, and the Board of Commissioners concerning capital and 


operational needs.  As an advisory board, the Recreation Commission has no decision making authority over how county resources are 


spent or managed.   


 


There are two vacant positions on the Recreation Commission. 


 


The Post 2 position became vacant on May 31, 2014.  The County advertised for two months and received five applications.  The 


Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner Randy Ognio, interviewed all five applicants and selected 


Briana MacDowell to serve on the Fayette County Recreation Commission.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Briana MacDowell to Post 2 of the Fayette County Recreation 


Commission, for a four-year term, beginning June 1, 2014 and expiring May 31, 2018.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Briana MacDowell is replacing Post 2 Commission member Joe Keubler on the Recreation Board.  She has served on the Peachtree City 


Recreation and Special Events Board.


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business













		Commissioners- Recreation Post 2 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Recreation Post 2 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #13


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Bradley Klinger to Post 5 of the Fayette County Recreation 


Commission, to fill an unexpired term, beginning April 11, 2014 and expiring March 31, 2016.


The Fayette County Recreation Commission is a citizen committee, comprised of five volunteers, who are appointed by the Fayette 


County Board of Commissioners, which reviews and evaluates programs, facilities, policies, and other matters and makes 


recommendations to the Recreation Department, the County Administrator, and the Board of Commissioners concerning capital and 


operational needs.  As an advisory board, the Recreation Commission has no decision making authority over how county resources are 


spent or managed.   


 


There are two vacant positions on the Recreation Commission. 


 


The Post 5 position became vacant on April 11, 2014 after Mr. Darryl Hicks resigned his position to serve on the Fayette County 


Development Authority.  The County advertised for two months and received five applications.  The Selection Committee, comprised of 


Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner Randy Ognio, interviewed all five applicants and selected Bradley Klinger to serve on the 


Fayette County Recreation Commission.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Bradley Klinger to Post 5 of the Fayette County Recreation 


Commission, to fill an unexpired term, beginning April 11, 2014 and expiring March 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 New Business

















		Commissioners- Recreation Post 5 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Recreation Post 5 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #4


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of the Sandy Creek High School Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) club for placing in the top ten at the FBLA 


National Leadership Conference.


Future Business Leaders of America-Phi Beta Lambda is a nonprofit 501(c)(3) education association with a quarter million students 


preparing for careers in business and business-related fields. The association has four divisions:  


 


1.Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) for high school students; 2.FBLA-Middle Level for junior high, middle, and intermediate 


school students; 3.Phi Beta Lambda (PBL) for postsecondary students; and 4. Professional Division for businesspeople, FBLA-PBL 


alumni, educators, and parents who support the goals of the association.    


 


FBLA-PBL's National Awards Program recognizes and rewards excellence in a broad range of business and career-related areas. 


Through state-based competition at the spring State Leadership Conferences, students compete in events testing their business 


knowledge and skills. Top state winners then are eligible to compete for honors at the National Leadership Conference each summer 


 


The Sandy Creek Future Leaders of America (FBLA) club placed in the top ten in their competitive events at the FBLA national 


Leadership Conference held in Nashville on June 29-July 2. (Source: http://www.fbla-pbl.org/web/page/614/sectionid/614/pagelevel/1/


main_interior.asp). 


Recognition of the Sandy Creek High School Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) club for placing in the top ten at the FBLA 


National Leadership Conference.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Students who will be recognized are Carlisle Vidourek, Saridh Galvan, Tamara Lopez, (6th place nationally in Digital Design and 


Promotion); Jamarcus Mathis, Ellie Klarl and Rosie Jamison, (8th place nationally in Hospitality Management).


Thursday, August 14, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #5


Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamation honoring Frank and Melba Gardner who are celebrating their 58th Wedding Anniversary.


Mr. and Mrs. Frank and Melba Gardner are celebrating their 58th wedding anniversary. Fayette County is honored to recognize the 


Gardner's and to celebrate their marriage.


Proclamation honoring Frank and Melba Gardner who is celebrating their 58th Wedding Anniversary.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 14, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Consent Agenda #7


Sheriff's Office Major Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, 


as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.


The United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury, on an annual basis, require the Fayette 


County Sheriff's Office to submit an Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document. 


 


The Equitable Agreement and Certification document provides a record of the total monies received from the United States Departments 


of Justice and Treasury, as well as an accounting of how the monies were spent for the purpose of law enforcement enhancement. 


 


This program enables Fayette County to participate in multi-jurisdictional drug investigations / prosecutions whereby those participating 


entities share the confiscated properties resulting from the convictions.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, 


as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.


Not Applicable.


N/A


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 14, 2014





		Sheriff- Equitable Sharing Agreement Agenda Request File

		Sheriff- Equitable Sharing Agreement Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #6


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of staff's request for a FY 2015 budget adjustment of $50,000.00 to be added to Personal Property Tax revenue and to the Tax 


Assessor's technical services in order to contract with an outside firm that will assist with audits of Personal Property accounts.


The Fayette County Board of Assessors has a statutory responsibility (O.C.G.A 48-5-299) to search out and make such investigations 


necessary to determine the value of unreported or under-reported properties subject to taxation in the county. 


 


The purpose of an audit is to gather information that will allow the appraiser to make an accurate determination of the fair market value of 


the property owned by the property owner and subject to taxation. An audit is an examination of the records of the property owner to 


make an independent determination of the fair market value of such property where such determination does not solely depend upon the 


good-faith disclosures of the property owner and information that is readily ascertainable by the appraisal staff. The appraisal staff shall 


perform, consistent with Georgia Law and policies that are established by the board of tax assessors, audits of the records of the 


property owners to verify the returns of personal property.  


 


Due to budget cuts, this line item was removed from the Tax Assessors' Office budget years ago. Without the assistance of an outside 


audit firm, it has been difficult for the staff appraisers to conduct required and timely audits as outlined in Georgia law, the Appraisal 


Procedures Manual and the Fayette County Board of Assessors' audit policy and procedures.


Approval of a FY 2015 budget adjustment of $50,000.00 to be added to Personal Property Tax revenue and to the Tax Assessor's 


technical services line item, resulting in no change to fund balance. 


Reference action seeking.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 14, 2014







 


 


GEORGIA CODE 


O.C.G.A. 45-8-29 


REVENUE and TAXATION 







   


O.C.G.A. § 48-5-299  


 


GEORGIA CODE 


Copyright 2014 by The State of Georgia 


All rights reserved. 


 


*** Current Through the 2014 Regular Session *** 


 


TITLE 48.  REVENUE AND TAXATION   


CHAPTER 5.  AD VALOREM TAXATION OF PROPERTY   


ARTICLE 5.  UNIFORM PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION AND EQUALIZATION   


PART 2.  COUNTY BOARDS OF TAX ASSESSORS  


 


O.C.G.A. § 48-5-299  (2014) 


 


§ 48-5-299.  Ascertainment of taxable property; assessments against unreturned property; 


penalty for unreturned property; changing real property values established by appeal in 


prior year  


 


 


   (a) It shall be the duty of the county board of tax assessors to investigate diligently and 


to inquire into the property owned in the county for the purpose of ascertaining what real 


and personal property is subject to taxation in the county and to require the proper return 


of the property for taxation. The board shall make such investigation as may be necessary 


to determine the value of any property upon which for any reason all taxes due the state or 


the county have not been paid in full as required by law. In all cases where the full amount 


of taxes due the state or county has not been paid, the board shall assess against the 


owner, if known, and against the property, if the owner is not known, the full amount of 


taxes which has accrued and which may not have been paid at any time within the statute 


of limitations. In all cases where taxes are assessed against the owner of property, the 


board may proceed to assess the taxes against the owner of the property according to the 


best information obtainable; and such assessment, if otherwise lawful, shall constitute a 


valid lien against the property so assessed. 


   (b)(1) In all cases where unreturned property is assessed by the county board of tax 


assessors after the time provided by law for making tax returns has expired, the board shall 


add to the amount of state and county taxes due a penalty of 10 percent of the amount of 


the tax due or, if the principal sum of the tax so assessed is less than $10.00 in amount, a 


penalty of $1.00. The penalty provided in this subsection shall be collected by the tax 


collector or the tax commissioner and in all cases shall be paid into the county treasury and 


shall remain the property of the county. 


      (2)(A) The provisions of paragraph (1) of this subsection to the contrary 


notwithstanding, this paragraph shall apply with respect to counties having a population of 


600,000 or more according to the United States decennial census of 1970 or any future 


such census. 


 


      (B) In all cases in which unreturned property is assessed by the board after the time 


provided by law for making tax returns has expired, the board shall add to the assessment 


of the property a penalty of 10 percent, which shall be included as a part of the taxable 


value for the year. 


 


(c) Real property, the value of which was established by an appeal in any year, that has not 


been returned by the taxpayer at a different value during the next two successive years, 







may not be changed by the board of tax assessors during such two years for the sole 


purpose of changing the valuation established or decision rendered in an appeal to the 


board of equalization or superior court. In such cases, before changing such value or 


decision, the board of assessors shall first conduct an investigation into factors currently 


affecting the fair market value. The investigation necessary shall include, but not be limited 


to, a visual on-site inspection of the property to ascertain if there have been any additions, 


deletions, or improvements to such property or the occurrence of other factors that might 


affect the current fair market value. If a review to determine if there are any errors in the 


description and characterization of such property in the files and records of the board of tax 


assessors discloses any errors, such errors shall not be the sole sufficient basis for 


increasing the valuation during the two-year period. 


 


(d) When real or personal property is located within a municipality whose boundaries extend 


into more than one county, it shall be the duty of each board of tax assessors of a county, 


wherein a portion of the municipality lies, to cooperatively investigate diligently into 


whether the valuation of such property is uniformly assessed with other properties located 


within the municipality but outside the county where such property is located. Such 


investigation shall include, but is not limited to, an analysis of the assessment to sales ratio 


of properties that have recently sold within the municipality and a comparison of the 


average assessment level of such properties by the various counties wherein a portion of 


the municipality lies. The respective boards shall exchange such information as will facilitate 


this investigation and make any necessary adjustments to the assessment of the real and 


personal property that is located in their respective counties within the municipality to 


achieve a uniform assessment of such property throughout the municipality. Any uniformity 


adjustments pursuant to this subsection shall only apply to the assessment used for 


municipal ad valorem tax purposes within the applicable county. 


 


HISTORY: Ga. L. 1913, p. 123, § 7; Code 1933, § 92-6913; Ga. L. 1937, p. 517, § 3; Ga. 


L. 1976, p. 1042, § 1; Ga. L. 1976, p. 1071, § 1; Code 1933, § 91A-1440, enacted by Ga. 


L. 1978, p. 309, § 2; Ga. L. 1994, p. 786, § 1; Ga. L. 2000, p. 873, § 1; Ga. L. 2006, p. 


431, § 1/HB 560.  


 







 


 


POLICY and PROCEDURES 


CONDUCTING AUDITS of BUSINESS PERSONAL 


PROPERTY, AIRCRAFT, MARINE 


BOARD OF TAX ASSESSORS of FAYETTE COUNTY 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 1 
 


POLICY AND PROCEDURES 


ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONDUCTING OF AUDITS 


OF BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY, AIRCRAFT, MARINE FOR THE BOARD 


OF TAX ASSESSORS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


I. CONTRACT FOR OUTSIDE AUDITING FIRM 


A. A valid contract between the Board of Tax Assessors of Fayette County (the 


“Board”)  and the outside firm (the “Auditor”)  must be in effect at any time 


the Auditor is assisting the Board in gathering information to be used to 


search out and appraise unreturned or under-reported properties in Fayette 


County (the “County”). The scope of the services rendered must be in 


compliance with O.C.G.A. 48-5-298 and Georgia Department of Revenue 


Rules and Regulations, Chapter 560-11-10, Appraisal Procedures Manual. 


 


B. The Auditor is directed and guided by the Board, the Chief Appraiser or 


his/her designee the (“Chief Appraiser”), and its staff (the Staff). All authority 


and final decisions remain with the Board. 


 


 


C. The contract must be specific in outlining the scope and responsibilities of the 


Auditor to include, but not be limited to: 


 


1. Form and purpose of audits or other services to be rendered. 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 2 
 


2. Compensation methods, either “Fixed” or “Hourly”. (Contigency fees not 


permitted) 


3. Reimbursements, if any, of expenses. 


4. Separate and valid agreements approved by the County Attorney for the 


County (the “County Attorney”), must be signed and made part of the 


current contract in effect to cover the following areas: 


 a.   Confidentiality Agreement; 


 b.   Conflict of Interest Agreement; and 


c. Hold Harmless and Insurance Requirements Statement 


5. Methods and reports to be used in reporting auditing results back to the 


Board. 


 


II. SELECTION OF ACCOUNTS TO BE AUDITED 


 


A. As outlined in O.C.G.A 48-5-299, the Board is required to search out and 


make such investigations necessary to determine the value of unreported or 


under-reported properties subject to taxation in the County. 


 


B. As the Staff reviews the returns as submitted by the taxpayer, they flag 


accounts  for “possible audit” if the following conditions are met: 


1. Incomplete returns; 


2. Values returned are not consistent with prior year values and a reasonable 


explanation is not provided; 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 3 
 


3. Returned values are not consistent with the type of business reported; 


4. Pertinent supporting information is missing; or 


5. Returns have not been received for one or more prior years.  


6. All unreturned new accounts audited. 


7. Accounts with disposals reported but not detailed with disposal list. 


 


C. The division manager and Staff review the accounts flagged for “possible 


audit”.  If a reasonable explanation or additional information can be obtained 


from the taxpayer that explains the discrepancy, then any necessary 


adjustments are made and the account is accepted without audit.  If a 


reasonable explanation or additional information is not received, then the 


account is selected for audit. 


 


D. Audits will be conducted in conjunction with taxpayer appeals in order to 


determine taxable assets and fair market value. 


 


 


E. As staff and budget resources are available a random selection method will be 


used to review or audit all business personal property returns every three years 


as stated in Appraisal Procedure Manuel. The criteria for random selection 


will be fair, unbiased, and consistent with the requirements of O.C.G.A. 48-5-


299. The random selection process will be as follows: 


All accounts will be ranked in size according to their Fair Market Value to 


include seven categories. 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 4 
 


  Class 1  Under $7501 (Exempt) 


  Class 2  $7501-$50,000 


  Class 3  $50,001-$250,000 


  Class 4  $250,001-$1,000,000 


  Class 5  $1,000,001-$5,000,000 


  Class 6  $5,000,001-$50,000,000 


  Class 7  Over $50,000,000 


 


One third of each category will be audited each of the three year program. The  


first account and every third account thereafter will be selected for review 


until the number of audits has been performed for each year of the program. 


 


This policy shall not be so restrictive as to prevent any account from being 


audited as the need should arise due to unforeseen circumstances. 


 


III. DELIVERY OF SELECTED ACCOUNTS  


A. A list is compiled of all accounts selected for audit to include taxpayer name 


and account number, tax year(s) being audited, current fair market value(s), 


and reason(s) selected for audit. 


 


B. If audit is contracted, photocopies of returns and all supporting documents for 


the year(s) being audited are made and provided to the outside Auditor. 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 5 
 


C. All contracted audits must be scheduled so as to allow ample time for 


completion prior to the end of each contract year. 


 


IV. CONDUCTING OF AUDITS AND TAXPAYER’S RECORDS 


A. The Staff prepares and mails a standard form letter to notify the taxpayer their 


account has been selected for audit.  The letter is sent to the contact name and 


address as shown on the return or in the personal property file records. Copies 


are made for the department file, and if the audit is contracted copies are made 


for the outside Auditor.  The letter describes to the taxpayer what to expect 


during the course of the audit, lists the type of reports to be reviewed and 


provides the name and telephone number of the Auditor.  The taxpayers is 


also advised in the letter to expect a telephone call from the Auditor to 


schedule a convenient time to complete the audit and make a visual walk-


through of the County location. 


 


B. During the course of the audit, the Auditor will review the records of the 


taxpayer, while maintaining strict confidentiality as outlined in O.C.G.A. 48-


5-314.  Only copies of records needed to support the return and findings are  


made and retained by the contracted Auditor.  


 


V. AUDIT RESULTS AND NOTIFICATION 


A. After completion of the audit, the Auditor compiles a report and presents the 


results to the Board at regularly scheduled monthly meetings. 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 6 
 


 


B. After review and approval by the Board and the division manager, the 


taxpayer is officially notified of the audit results by the Board. 


 


C. If the audit results reflect the existence of unreturned or under-reported 


property, the taxpayer shall immediately pay the additional taxes due along 


with penalties and interest, if any. 


 


VI. COMMENCING AN AUDIT 


A. All records obtained by the Auditor during the course of an audit authorized 


by the Board shall be kept and maintained either on the premises of the 


taxpayer or on the premises of the County.  At no time shall records obtained 


from the taxpayer be kept or maintained at any location other than the 


premises of the taxpayer or the premises of the County.  The Auditor shall 


utilize the following procedures to initiate an audit. 


 


1.  The Auditor maintains a telephone log of all calls made in an attempt to 


schedule the visit or obtain copies of needed records. 


2. If the taxpayer cancels two (2) appointments with the Auditor or fails to 


respond, the Auditor shall notify the division manager of the inability of 


the Auditor to commence the audit. The division manager will then cause a 


third letter to be sent to the taxpayer communicating the importance of the 


audit process and strongly recommend to the taxpayer to meet with the 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 7 
 


Auditor within the next 30 days. The taxpayer shall be advised in this letter 


that failure on the part of the taxpayer to cooperate in this audit could result 


in a subpoena being issued to the taxpayer by the Board. 


3. The Auditor again attempts to schedule the audit after the letter is sent and 


obtain copies of needed records. 


4. If the letter fails to produce the intended result a fourth letter is sent by the 


division manager giving the taxpayer a specific date, within the next two 


weeks, to meet with the Auditor to begin the audit process. The taxpayer 


shall be advised again in this letter that failure on the part of the taxpayer to 


cooperate in this audit could result in a subpoena being issued to the 


taxpayer by the Board. 


5. If the taxpayer continues to remain uncooperative after the fourth letter is 


sent, the matter shall be brought before the Board at the next regularly 


scheduled meeting for the Board to determine whether or not a subpoena 


should be issued for the taxpayer and/or records of the taxpayer. 


 


B. If, at any time during the procedures as outlined above in Paragraph A, the 


Board is advised in writing by the taxpayer or its representatives of 


extenuating circumstances, which are beyond the taxpayer’s control and 


prevent the taxpayer from complying with the request(s) for an audit, the audit 


may be rescheduled, postponed, or even canceled as deemed appropriate by 


the Board. 


 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 8 
 


 


VII. SUBPOENA POWERS AND PROCEDURES 


A. O.C.G.A 48-5-300  provides the Board with the authority to subpoena any 


person, books, papers, or documents which may contain any information 


material to any question relative to the existence or liability of property 


subject to taxation, with the following exceptions: 


1. Any income tax records or returns; 


2. Any property appraisals prior to the appeal process; 


3. All insurance policies; and 


4. Any individual tenant sales information. 


 


B. Guidelines for issuing a subpoena are as follows: 


1. A minimum of five (5) business days must be allowed between the final 


compliance date and the meeting of the Board at which the subpoena is 


requested. 


2. The subpoena must be specific in describing the reports and records to be 


presented and the subpoena must be in a format approved by the County 


Attorney. 


3. The date the taxpayer is commanded to appear before the Board of Tax 


Assessors must be at least ten (10) business days after the subpoena is 


approved and signed. 


4. The subpoena must be sent via certified mail with proof of delivery. 


 







December 30, 2011 Rev. 9 
 


C. If the taxpayer fails to comply with the commands of a subpoena, then the 


division manager shall submit an agenda item for the next meeting of the 


Board requesting that the taxpayer be required to appear before a Judge of the 


Superior Court of Fayette County to show cause why the taxpayer should not 


be found in contempt. 


 


VIII. COMPLETED AUDITS 


A. The Personal Property division retains all documents in a secure location until 


the statue of limitation (seven (7) years) has expired; at which time all 


documents shall be destroyed. 


 


B. If the audit has been contracted to outside Auditor, the outside Auditor does 


not retain in his/her possession any written information or documents, 


including electronic files and documents related to the audit at any time prior 


to, during the course of, or after the audit. 


 


IX. BOARD SUPPLIES 


A. The contracted outside Auditor is prohibited from possessing any letterhead or 


envelopes of the Board or any other forms displaying the logos of the County 


or the Board. 


 







 


 


560-11-10-.08 


PERSONAL PROPERTY APPRAISAL 







560-11-10-.08 Personal Property Appraisal.
(1) Personal property identification. The appraisal staff shall identify personal property,
determine its taxability, and classify it for addition to the county ad valorem tax digest in
accordance with this paragraph. 
(a) Distinguishing personal property. The appraiser shall be required to correctly
identify personal property and distinguish it from real property where the proper valuation
procedures, as set forth in this Rule, may be followed. 
1. Examples. As used in this Chapter, personal property shall be that property defined in
Rule 560-11-10-.02(1)(r). This Rule shall provide illustrations to assist the appraiser in
the proper interpretation of the definition. However, these illustrations should not be
construed in a manner that conflicts with the definition. Examples of personal property
are tangible items such as aircraft; boats and motors; inventories of retail stock, finished
manufactured or processed goods, goods in process, raw materials and supplies; furniture,
personal fixtures, trade fixtures, machinery and equipment. 
2. Identification of trade fixtures. When property the appraiser believes is a trade
fixture has not been returned by the tenant, the appraiser shall require the tenant to
produce their lease agreement and shall carefully review the agreement before making a
recommendation to the board of tax assessors regarding the classification of the property
in question. The appraiser shall inform the tenant that they may redact, at their option, any
information relating to the payments that are required by the lease agreement. 
(b) Assessment date. Code section 48-5-10 provides that each return by a property owner
shall be for property held and subject to taxation on January 1 of the tax year. The
appraisal staff shall base their decisions regarding the taxability, tax situs, uniform
assessment, and valuation of personal property on the circumstances of such property on
January 1 of the tax year for which the assessment is being prepared. When personal
property is transferred to a new owner or converted to a new use, the circumstances of
such property on January 1 shall nevertheless be considered as controlling. 
(c) Freeport exemptions. 
1. Mailing applications. The appraisal staff shall, by U. S. mail, send a new freeport
exemption application to any person, firm or corporation that was approved for freeport
exemption by the board of tax assessors for the tax year preceding the tax year for which
the application is to be made. The application provided by the appraisal staff shall be
deposited with the local post office no later than the 15th day after the official who is
responsible for receiving returns has opened the books for returns. The failure of the
appraisal staff to comply with this requirement shall not relieve a person, firm or
corporation from the responsibility to timely file a freeport application. 
2. Reviewing applications. The appraisal staff shall, upon receipt of a freeport
application, reconcile the figures reported on such form to any inventory totals that may
have been returned by the property owner. The appraisal staff may obtain relevant
information as is available from financial records or other records of the property owner
when needed to reconcile the figures reported on the application. Once the appraisal staff
has completed the reconciliation of the freeport application, they shall forward the
application and their recommendations, along with any supporting documentation, to the
board of tax assessors. When the appraisal staff recommends the freeport application be
denied, in whole or in part, they shall include the reasons for their recommendation. 







(d) Tax situs. The appraisal staff shall inquire into the proper tax situs of personal
property before preparing the proposed assessment to ensure that the property owner is
made subject to only those taxes that may legally be levied. The tax situs inquiry shall be
sufficiently specific to determine whether the property is subject to tax by each of the
authorities authorized to levy taxes in the county. 
1. General tax situs. Unless otherwise provided in subparagraph (d) of this paragraph,
the appraisal staff shall consider the tax situs of personal property to be as provided in
this subparagraph. 
(i) Tax situs of personal property of Georgia residents. The appraisal staff shall
consider the tax situs of personal property owned by a Georgia resident as being the
domicile of the owner unless such property has acquired a business situs elsewhere. The
appraisal staff shall consider the tax situs of personal property owned by a Georgia
resident and used in connection with a business as being the location of the business. In
making the determination of tax situs, the appraisal staff shall consider such factors as the
principal location of the personal property, the base from which its operations normally
originate and whether the personal property is connected with some business enterprise
that is situated more or less permanently in the county, as distinguished from an
enterprise whose location is merely transitory or temporary. When personal property used
in connection with a business is moved about in such a manner that it is not
predominantly located during the year in one place, the appraisal staff shall consider the
headquarters of the business as the tax situs. 
(ii) Tax situs of personal property of non-residents. The appraisal staff shall consider
the tax situs of personal property owned by non-residents as being where the property is
located. The appraisal staff shall recommend to the board of tax assessors a “no tax situs”
status for any personal property owned by a nonresident who does not maintain a place of
business in Georgia and who gives the personal property to a commercial printer in
Georgia for printing services to be performed in Georgia. 
2. Tax situs of boats. In accordance with Code section 48-5- 16(d), the appraisal staff
shall consider the tax situs of a boat to be the tax district wherein lies the domicile of the
owner, even when the boat is located within another tax district in the county. When the
boat is functionally located for recreational or convenience purposes for 184 days or more
in a county other than where the owner is domiciled, the appraisal staff shall consider the
tax situs of the boat to be where it is functionally located. 
3. Tax situs of aircraft. In accordance with Code section 48-5- 16(e), the appraisal staff
shall consider the tax situs of an aircraft to be the tax district wherein lies the domicile of
the owner, even when the aircraft is located within another tax district in the county.
When the aircraft’s primary home base is in a county other than where the owner is
domiciled, the appraisal staff shall consider the tax situs of the aircraft to be where it is
principally hangared or tied down and out of which its flights normally originate. 
4. Tax situs of foreign merchandise in transit. The appraisal staff shall recommend to
the board of tax assessors a “no tax situs” status for foreign merchandise that is in transit
through this state. The recommendation of “no tax situs” shall be made regardless of the
fact that while the foreign merchandise is in the warehouse it is assembled, bound, joined,
processed, disassembled, divided, cut, broken in bulk, relabeled, or repackaged. The grant
of “no tax situs” status shall be liberally construed. In deciding whether goods are foreign,







the appraisal staff shall determine if the point of origin is a non-domestic shipping port. In
deciding whether goods are in transit, the appraisal staff shall consider whether the
interruption in the transport of the goods may be characterized as having a business
purpose or advantage, rather than just being an incidental interruption in the continuity of
transit. 
(e) Assessments of personal property used on state contracts. Under Code section
50-17-29(e)(1), the appraisal staff shall not propose an assessment upon the personal
property of any contractor or subcontractor as a condition to or result of the performance
of a contract, work, or services by such contractor or subcontractor in connection with
any project being constructed, repaired, remodeled, enlarged, serviced, or destroyed for,
or on behalf of, the state or any of its agencies, boards, bureaus, commissions, and
authorities. The appraisal staff shall inquire into the nature of the use of such property and
prepare their proposed assessment in accordance with this subparagraph. 
1. Personal property located in headquarters’ county. When the tax situs of the
personal property being used on state projects is in the same county as where the property
owner’s permanent business headquarters and administrative offices are located, and such
property is not used exclusively for the state projects contemplated by Code section
50-17-29(e)(1), the appraisal staff shall not apportion their proposed assessment of the
property. When such property is used exclusively for such state projects, such property is
made exempt by Code section 50-17-29(e)(1) from ad valorem taxation by the county and
the appraisal staff shall treat such property as exempt property is treated. 
2. Personal property not located in headquarters’ county. When the tax situs of the
personal property being used on state projects is in a county other than where the property
owner’s permanent business headquarters and administrative offices are located, and such
property would not be located in the county absent the state projects, then the appraisal
staff shall apportion their proposed assessment of such property as follows: The exempt
portion of the personal property being used on state projects shall be that pro rata portion
of the total value of such property that represents the percentage the contractor or
subcontractor can reasonably demonstrate is likely to represent the portion of their
business that will result from state projects during the tax year. The appraisal staff may
consider the percentage of income, production output, or time attributable to state projects
during the preceding year. The appraisal staff shall consider any information submitted by
the property owner regarding the basis for the apportionment. The appraisal staff shall not
apportion the personal property when the property owner fails to provide reasonable
evidence necessary to determine the portion of the property owner’s business that will
result from state projects during the year. 
(f) Partial assessments. Unless specifically provided by law and this Rule, the appraisal
staff shall not prepare a partial appraisal based on the fact that personal property is owned
or used during the year in a manner that would make it exempt part of the year and
taxable part of the year. 
(2) Classification. The appraisal staff shall classify personal property as provided in Rule
560-11-2-.21 for inclusion in the county tax digest. 
(3) Return of personal property. In accordance with Code section 48-5-299(a), the
appraisal staff, on behalf of the board of tax assessors, shall investigate diligently and
inquire into the property owned in the county for the purpose of ascertaining what real







and tangible personal property is subject to taxation in the county and to require the
proper return of the property for taxation. The appraisal staff shall make such
investigation as may be necessary to determine the value of any property upon which for
any reason all taxes due the state or the county have not been paid in full as required by
law. In all cases where taxes are assessed against the owner of property, the appraisal staff
shall prepare a proposed assessment on the property according to the best information
obtainable. 
(a) Information sources. The appraisal staff should develop and maintain information
sources for the discovery of unreturned personal property. 
(b) Returns. Property owners shall use Department of Revenue authorized return forms
when returning personal property. No other forms shall be provided for this purpose to
property owners by the county official responsible for receiving returns unless previously
approved in writing by the Revenue Commissioner. 
1. Authorized return forms. The returns described in this subparagraph shall be
authorized for use when returning personal property. 
(i) Form PT-50P. The return form PT-50P, entitled “Business Personal Property Tax
Return”, may be used for the return of business personal property when the property
owner is not eligible or does not desire to file an application for freeport exemption. 
(ii) Form PT-50PF. The return form PT-50PF, entitled “Business Personal Property Tax
Return/Application for Freeport Exemption”, may be used for the return of business
personal property and simultaneous application for freeport exemption. 
(iii) Form PT-50MA. The return form PT-50MA, entitled “Marine/Aircraft Personal
Property Tax Return”, may be used for the return of boats or aircraft. 
2. Obtaining returns from receiver. Each year, after the deadline for filing returns, the
appraisal staff shall secure the returns from the official responsible for receiving returns
on or before the tenth day following such deadline. 
3. Automatic returns. In accordance with Code section 48-5-20, the appraisal staff shall
deem any property owner that does not file a return by the deadline as returning for
taxation the same property as was returned or deemed to have been returned in the
preceding tax year at the same valuation as the property was finally determined to be
subject to taxation in the preceding year. 
(c) Reporting schedules. Property owners shall use Department of Revenue authorized
reporting schedules when reporting supporting information for authorized return forms.
No other reporting schedules shall be provided for this purpose to property owners by the
county official responsible for reviewing returns unless previously approved in writing by
the Revenue Commissioner. A property owner may attach other schedules or documents
that provide further support for the value they have placed on their personal property
return. The appraisal staff shall consider all additional information submitted by the
property owner with the return and reporting schedules. The reporting schedules required
by Rule 560- 11-10-.08(3)(c) and appropriate for the type of personal property being
returned and any other information submitted with the return by the property owner are
made confidential by Code section 48-5- 314 and shall be treated as such by the appraisal
staff. The appraisal staff shall not consider as fully returned any property that is omitted,
misrepresented, or undervalued on the supporting reporting schedules and accompanying
property owner documents, as these provide the basis for the property owner’s







declarations of value on the return and are necessary for the board of assessors to carry
out their responsibility under Code section 48-5-299 to, through their appraisal staff,
ascertaining what personal property is subject to taxation in the county and to require the
proper return of the property for taxation. 
1. Authorized reporting schedules. The reporting schedules described in this
subparagraph shall be authorized for use when reporting information to support the return
of personal property. 
(i) Schedule A. The reporting schedule entitled “Schedule A” may be used to list and
describe any furniture, trade fixtures, personal fixtures, machinery and equipment that is
included on the property owner’s return. 
(ii) Schedule B. The reporting schedule entitled “Schedule B” may be used to list and
describe any inventory that is included on the property owner’s return. 
(iii) Schedule C. The reporting schedule entitled “Schedule C” may be used to list and
describe any construction in progress that is included on the property owner’s return. 
(iv) Schedule D. The reporting schedule entitled “Schedule D” may be used to list and
describe any boats or aircraft that are included on the property owner’s return. 
(4) Verification. The appraisal staff shall review and audit the returns in accordance with
policies and procedures set by the county board of tax assessors consistent with Georgia
law and this Rule. 
(a) Omissions and undervaluations. If not otherwise prohibited by law or this Rule, the
appraisal staff shall recommend an additional assessment to the board of tax assessors
when any review or audit reveals that a property owner has omitted from their return any
property that should be returned or has failed to return any of their property at its fair
market value. The appraisal staff shall recommend a reduced assessment to the board of
tax assessors when any review or audit reveals that a property owner has overstated the
amount of personal property subject to taxation. 
(b) Reassessments. The appraisal staff shall recommend to the board of tax assessors a
new assessment when the property owner has omitted personal property from their return
or failed to return personal property at its fair market value, when such omission or
undervaluation has been discovered by an audit conducted pursuant to Rule 560-1
1-10-.08(4)(d). The appraisal staff shall not be precluded from conducting such an audit
merely because a change of assessment has been made on the personal property as a result
of a review conducted pursuant to Rule 560-11-10-.08(4)(c). However, the appraisal staff
may not recommend to the board of tax assessors a reassessment of the same personal
property for which an audit has been conducted pursuant to Rule 560-11-10-.08(4)(d) and
a final assessment has already been made by the board. 
(c) Review. The purpose of a review is to determine if a property owner has correctly and
fully completed their return and reporting schedules. It is based upon the good-faith
disclosures of the property owner and information that is readily ascertainable by the
appraisal staff. The review of an owner’s return may consist of, but is not limited to, an
analysis of any improper omissions or inclusions, improperly applied or omitted
depreciation, and improperly applied or omitted inflation or deflation of the value of the
owner’s property. The examination should include a comparison of the current return
information with return information from prior years. The appraiser should contact the
owner or their agent by an on-site visit, telephone call, or written correspondence to







attempt to resolve any questionable items. Returns with unresolved discrepancies,
unexpected values, or incomplete information should be escalated to an audit. 
(d) Audits. The purpose of an audit is to gather information that will allow the appraiser
to make an accurate determination of the fair market value of the property owned by the
property owner and subject to taxation. An audit is an examination of the records of the
property owner to make an independent determination of the fair market value of such
property where such determination does not solely depend upon the good-faith
disclosures of the property owner and information that is readily ascertainable by the
appraisal staff. The appraisal staff shall perform, consistent with Georgia Law and
policies that are established by the board of tax assessors, audits of the records of the
property owners to verify the returns of personal property. These audits may take place at
any time within the seven-year statute of limitations, which begins on the date the
personal property was required by law to be returned. 
1. Scope of audit. The audit may be an advanced desk audit of certain additional property
owner records that are voluntarily submitted or obtained by subpoena from the property
owner or a complex on-site detailed audit of the property owner’s books and records
combined with a physical inspection of the personal property. The documents the
appraisal staff should secure include, but are not limited to, schedules A, B, and C of
form PT-50P; a balance sheet or other type of financial record that for a particular
location reflects the business’ book value as of January 1 of the tax year being audited; a
ledger of capitalized personal property items held on January 1 of the tax year being
audited; and an income statement. .
(i) Use of subpoena. The appraiser should request the board of tax assessors to subpoena,
within the limitations of their subpoena powers, any existing documents the property
owner fails to provide voluntarily, when these documents are deemed by the appraiser to
be critical to the audit. Since the appraiser may not request a subpoena for documents that
do not presently exist in the format needed, the appraiser should seek existing documents
held by the property owner and solicit the owner’s voluntary cooperation in obtaining
these documents. 
2. Contracts with auditing specialists. The appraiser shall secure non-disclosure
statements from any contracted audit specialist to ensure that such specialist shall
conform with the confidentiality provisions of Code section 48-5-314 and shall not
disclose the property owner’s confidential records to unauthorized persons or use such
confidential records for purposes other than the county’s review for ad valorem tax
purposes of the tax return and supporting documentation. The appraisal staff shall provide
a copy of such nondisclosure statement to the property owner upon such owner’s request.
The appraiser shall not recommend to the board of tax assessors any contract or
agreement with an audit specialist that provides for such specialist to contingently share a
percentage of the tax collected as a result of any audits such specialist may perform. 
(i) Notice to property owner. The lead appraiser shall ensure the property owner is sent
a notice they have been selected for an audit of their personal property holdings for ad
valorem tax purposes. The notice shall, at a minimum, indicate the following: the
purposes and goals of the audit and the law authorizing the audit; the name of the lead
appraiser who is primarily responsible for the conduct of the audit; the names of the
members of the audit team that will be performing the audit; the number of years that will



Joel

Highlight







be audited; a description of the type records that should be made available; a description
of how the audit will be conducted; the range of dates desired for the audit; and contact
information should the property owner wish to contact the lead appraiser. The notice shall
contain a statement that the lead appraiser will be contacting the property owner by
telephone to establish the date and time of the audit and to determine the availability and
location of records. At the conclusion of the audit, if there is sufficient evidence to
warrant a recommended change of assessment, the lead appraiser shall have prepared a
list of preliminary audit findings and provide such list to the property owner to afford
them an opportunity to meet and discuss the findings and view any supporting schedules
and documents relied upon by the individuals conducting the audit. After any such
meeting requested by the property owner, the lead appraiser shall have prepared the final
audit report and proposed assessment and provide a copy to the property owner and the
board of tax assessors. 
(e) Audit selection criteria. The appraisal staff shall recommend to the board of tax
assessors a review and audit selection criteria, and the appraisal staff shall follow such
criteria when adopted by the board. The criteria should be designed to maximize the
number of personal property returns that may be reviewed or audited with existing
resources. The criteria should be fair, unbiased, and developed consistent with the
requirements of Code section 48-5- 299. All personal property accounts should be
reviewed or audited at least once every three years. 
(f) Property owner records. The appraisal staff should first endeavor to obtain the
records necessary to substantiate the information returned or reported by the property
owner through the voluntary cooperation of the property owner. When such voluntary
cooperation is not forthcoming, and the records requested from the property owner are
believed by the appraiser to be critical to a proper appraisal of the personal property, the
appraiser may request that the board of tax assessors issue an appropriate subpoena for
such records. The appraiser may request that the board of tax assessors issue an
appropriate subpoena for the testimony of any individuals the appraiser believes poses
knowledge critical to determination of the fair market value of the property owner’s
personal property.
1. Record types. The types of records the appraisal staff may request the board of tax
assessors to issue subpoenas for include, but are not limited to, the following: chart of
accounts, general ledger, detailed subsidiary ledgers, journals of original entry, balance
sheet, income statement, annual report, Securities Exchange Commission Form 10K. The
types of records the appraisal staff may not request the board of tax assessors to issue
subpoenas for include the following:
(i) Income tax returns. Forms and schedules authorized by the Internal Revenue Service
or the revenue collecting agencies of the several sites for use in filing income tax returns
to those agencies;
(ii) Property appraisals. A property appraisal that the property owner has obtained prior
to any appeal that is filed as a result of a change of assessment being made to the property
owner’s personal property;
(iii) Insurance policies. An insurance policy that may contain valuation estimates of the
insured personal property; or
(iv) Tenant sales information. A rent roll or document containing the individual tenant



Joel

Highlight







sales information on the property owner’s rented or leased personal property. 
(5) Valuation procedures. The appraisal staff shall follow the provisions of this
paragraph when performing their appraisals. Irrespective of the valuation approach used,
the final results of any appraisal of personal property by the appraisal staff shall in all
instances conform to the definition of fair market value in Code section 48-5-2 and this
Rule. 
(a) General procedures. The appraisal staff shall consider the sales comparison, cost,
and income approaches in the appraisal of personal property. The degree of dependence
on any one approach will change with the availability of reliable data and type of property
being appraised. 
1. Information presented by property owner. The appraisal staff shall consider any
timely information presented by the property owner that may have reasonable relevance
to the appraisal of the owner’s personal property. The appraisal staff shall consider the
effect of any factors discovered during the review or audit of the return or directly
presented by the property owner that may reduce the value of the owner’s personal
property, including, but not limited to all forms of depreciation, shrinkage, theft and
damage. 
2. Selection of approach. With respect to machinery, equipment, personal fixtures, and
trade fixtures, the appraisal staff shall use the sales comparison approach to arrive at the
fair market value when there is a ready market for such property. When no ready market
exists, the appraiser shall next determine a basic cost approach value. When the appraiser
determines that the basic cost approach value does not adequately reflect the physical
deterioration, functional or economic obsolescence, or otherwise is not representative of
fair market value, they shall apply the approach or combination of approaches to value
that, in their judgment, results in the best estimate of fair market value. All adjustments to
the basic cost approach shall be documented to the board of tax assessors. 
3. Rounding. The appraisal staff may express the final fair market value estimate to the
board of tax assessors in numbers that are rounded to the nearest hundred dollars. 
(b) Special procedures. The appraisal staff shall observe the procedures in this
subparagraph when appraising inventory and construction in process. 
1. Valuation of inventory. When appraising inventory, the appraisal staff shall consider
the value of inventory to consist of all the charges incurred from its original state as raw
material to its final resting place for ultimate consumption, including such items as freight
and other overhead charges, with the exception of the cost of the final sale. The appraisal
staff shall also consider factors contributing to any loss of value including, but not limited
to, obsolescence, shrinkage, theft and damage. 
2. Construction in progress. Property owners who are constructing or installing a large
piece or line of production equipment may be required by generally accepted accounting
principles to accrue the total costs associated with such equipment in a holding account
until the construction or installation is complete and the equipment is ready for
production, at which time, the property owner is permitted by such principles to post the
total accrued cost to a fixed asset account, taking appropriate depreciation. If such
holding account is maintained by the property owner, the appraisal staff shall consider the
accrued total cost reported in the property owner’s holding account when appraising such
property. Construction in progress shall be appraised in the same manner as other similar







personal property taking into account that there may be little or no physical deterioration
on such property and that the fair market value may be diminished due to the incomplete
state of construction. If comparable sales information of personal property under
construction is generally not available and there is no other specific evidence to measure
the probable loss of value if the property is sold in an incomplete state of construction,
the appraisal staff may multiply the identified total cost of construction by a uniform
market risk factor of .75. 
3. Overhauls. When appraising machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and
trade fixtures, the appraisal staff shall consider the cost of all expenditures, both direct
and indirect, relating to any efforts to overhaul an asset to modernize, rebuild, or
otherwise extend the useful life of such asset. The following procedure is to be used by
the appraisal staff to estimate the value of an overhauled asset: An adjustment to the
original cost of the asset is made to reflect the cost of the components that have been
replaced. The cost of the overhaul is divided by an index factor representing the
accumulated inflation or deflation from the year of acquisition of the asset on which the
overhaul was performed to the year of the overhaul. This amount is then subtracted from
the original cost of the asset being overhauled. The remainder is then multiplied by the
composite conversion factor for the year of the original acquisition as specified in Rule
560-11-10-.08(5)(f)4.(iii) of this section. The current year’s composite conversion factor
is then applied to the cost of the overhaul, and these two figures are combined to
represent the estimate of value for the overhauled asset. 
(c) Level of trade. The appraisal staff shall recognize three distinct levels of trade: the
manufacturing level, the wholesale level, and the retail level. The appraiser shall take into
account the incremental costs that are added to a product as it advances from one level to
another that may increase its value as a final product. The appraisal staff shall value the
property at its level of trade. 
(d) Ready markets. When the appraiser lacks sufficient evidence to demonstrate the
existence of a ready market, he or she shall consider any evidence submitted by the
property owner demonstrating that a ready market is available. When the property owner
cannot prove the existence of a reliable ready market, the appraiser may use other
valuation approaches as authorized by law and Rule 560-11-10-.08(5). 
1. Liquidation sales. The appraisal staff should recognize that those liquidation sales that
do not represent the way personal property is normally bought and sold may not be
representative of a ready market. For such sales, the appraisal staff should consider the
structure of the sale, its participants, the purchasers, and other salient facts surrounding
the sale. After considering this information, the appraisal staff may disregard a sale in its
entirety, adjust it to the appropriate level of trade, or accept it at face value. 
(e) Sales comparison approach. The sales comparison approach uses the sales of
comparable properties to estimate the value of the subject property being appraised. 
1. Widely used pricing guides. The appraisal staff should make a reasonable effort to
obtain and use generally accepted pricing guides that are published and widely used
within the market. When using such a guide to estimate the comparative sales approach
value, the appraiser shall begin with the listed retail price and then make any value
adjustments as provided in the guide instructions, based on the best information available
about the subject property being appraised. 







2. Lesser-known pricing guides. The property owner may submit, and the appraisal staff
shall consider, lesser known publications, periodicals and price lists of the specific types
of personal property being returned. Such lists should be regularly consulted by buyers of
the type personal property reported, and should list prices at which sellers, who regularly
deal in the types of property reported, typically offer such property for sale. 
(i) Validation of lesser pricing guides. In all cases where unpublished, unrecognized, or
unverified sales data are submitted by the property owner, the steps the appraiser may
take to validate such data include, but are not limited to, the following:
(I) Arm’s length transactions. Verify that the sales meet the criteria set forth for an
arm’s length transaction as evidenced in Rule 560-11-2-.56(1)(d). This may be
accomplished by confirmation of the facts of the sale from the buyer, seller, or other
knowledgeable parties. 
(II) Representativeness. Verify that the sales data submitted is either all-inclusive or has
been randomly selected, so as to be unbiased and fairly represent the market for the
personal property being appraised. This may be accomplished by contacting known
dealers of the subject personal property to determine whether other significant market
data exists that supports the data submitted by the property owner. 
(III) Financing. Adjust the sale price of the subject property for non-conventional
financing. 
(IV) Time of sale. Adjust the sale price of the subject property for the date of sale in
order to estimate the value as of the January 1 assessment date. 
(V) Discounts. Adjust the sale price to remove trade and cash discounts. 
(VI) Comparability. Adjust the sale price of the subject property for characteristics of
the subject not found in the sales to which it is being compared, such as condition, use,
and extra or missing features. 
3. Other factors. To finalize the sales comparison approach, the appraiser shall consider
any other factors, appropriate to the approach, which may be affecting the value. When
the comparative sales approach is used as the basis for the appraisal of personal property,
the appraiser shall not make further adjustments to the value to reflect economic
obsolescence, functional obsolescence, or inflation. 
(f) Cost approach. The cost approach arrives at an estimate of value by taking the
replacement or reproduction cost of the personal property and then reducing this cost to
allow for physical deterioration, functional and economic obsolescence. 
1. General procedure. In applying the cost approach to personal property during a
review or audit of a return, the appraiser shall identify the year acquired, and total
acquisition costs, including installation, freight, taxes, and fees. The acquisition costs
shall then be adjusted for inflation and deflation and then depreciated as appropriate to
reflect current market values. 
2. Book value. The appraiser should recognize that the appraisal and accounting practices
for depreciating personal property might differ. Accounting practices provide for recovery
of the cost of an asset, whereas appraisal practices strive to estimate the fair market value
related to the current market. The appraiser should consider depreciation in the forms of
physical deterioration, functional obsolescence, and economic obsolescence which may
not necessarily be reflected in the book value. The appraiser should consider that
accounting practices of property owners might also differ. 







3. Valuation as a whole. The appraiser may arrange the individual items of personal
property into groups with similar valuation characteristics and value such group as a
whole when the itemized appraisals of each item of personal property will not add
substantially to the accuracy of the determination of the cost approach value. 
4. Basic cost approach. The appraisal staff shall determine the basic cost approach value
of machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and trade fixtures using the
following uniform four-step valuation procedures: Determine the original cost new of the
item of personal property to the property owner; determine the uniform economic life
group for the item of personal property; and multiply the original cost new times the
uniform composite conversion factor appropriate for the economic life group and actual
age of the item of personal property. Then determine a salvage value of any item of
personal property when it is taken out of use at the end of its expected economic life. 
(i) Original cost new. The appraisal staff shall determine the original cost new of the
item of machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and trade fixtures. Any real
improvements to the real property, including real fixtures that had to be installed for the
proper operation of the property, shall be included in the appraisal of the real property and
not included in the basic cost approach value of the personal property. Those portions of
transportation costs and installation costs that do not represent normal and customary
costs for the type personal property being appraised shall be excluded from the original
cost new when determining the basic cost approach value. 
(ii) Economic life groups. When determining the basic cost approach value of
machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and trade fixtures, the appraisal staff
shall separate the individual items of property into four economic life groupings that most
reasonably reflect the normal economic life of such property as specified in this
subparagraph. The appraiser shall use Table B-1 and B-2 of Publication 946 of the U. S.
Treasury Department Internal Revenue Service, as revised in 1998, to classify the
individual asset into the appropriate economic life group. For property that does not
appear in such publication, the appraisal staff may determine the appropriate economic
life group based on the best information available, including, but not limited to, the
property owner’s history of purchases and disposals. 
(I) Group I. The appraisal staff shall place into Group I any assets that have a typical
economic life between five and seven years. 
(II) Group II. The appraisal staff shall place into Group II any assets that have a typical
economic life between eight and twelve years. 
(III) Group III. The appraisal staff shall place into Group III any assets that have a
typical economic life of thirteen years or more. 
(IV) Group IV. The appraisal staff shall place into Group IV any assets that have a
typical economic life of four years or less. The appraisal staff shall also place into Group
IV those assets classified as Asset Class 00.12 in Publication 946 of the U.S. Treasury
Internal Revenue Service, Table B-1, as revised in 1998. 
(iii) Composite conversion factors. The appraisal staff shall, in accordance with this
Rule, use the composite conversion factors as provided in this subparagraph and apply the
appropriate factor to the original cost new of personal property to arrive at the basic cost
approach value. The last composite conversion factor in each economic life group shall
not be trended and shall represent the residual value. 







(I) Group I composite conversion factors. The following composite conversion factors
shall be applied to Group I assets to arrive at the basic cost approach value for years one
through seven: Y1- .87, Y2-.74, Y3-.58, Y4-.43, Y5-.32, Y6-.26, Y7-.21. Thereafter the
residual composite conversion factor shall be .20. 
(II) Group II composite conversion factors. The following composite conversion
factors shall be applied to Group II assets to arrive at the basic cost approach value for
years one through eleven: Y1-.92, Y2-.85, Y3-.78, Y4-.70, Y5-.63, Y6-.54, Y7-.44,
Y8-.34, Y9-.28, Y10-.25, Y11-.25. Thereafter the residual composite conversion factor
shall be .20. 
(III) Group III composite conversion factors. The following composite conversion
factors shall be applied to Group III assets to arrive at the basic cost approach value for
years one through sixteen: Y1-.95, Y2-.91, Y3-.87, Y4-.82, Y5-.79, Y6-.75, Y7-.70,
Y8-.63, Y9-.57, Y10-.52, Y11-.47, Y12-.41, Y13-.35, Y14-.31, Y15-.29, Y16- .28.
Thereafter the residual composite conversion factor shall be .20. 
(IV) Group IV composite conversion factors. The following composite conversion
factors shall be applied to Group IV assets to arrive at the basic cost approach value for
years one through three: Y1-.67, Y2-.54, Y3-.31. Thereafter the residual composite
conversion factor shall be .10. 
(iv) Basic cost approach value. The basic cost approach value shall be determined by
multiplying the composite conversion factor times the original cost new of operating
machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and trade fixtures. 
(v) Salvage value. Once personal property is taken out of service at or after the end of its
typical economic life, it shall be considered salvage until disposed of and the appraiser
shall determine a basic cost approach value by taking ten percent of the original cost new
of such property. The basic cost approach value for property withdrawn from active use
but retained as backup equipment shall be one-half the basic cost approach value
otherwise applicable for such property. 
5. Further depreciation to basic cost approach value. 
(i) Physical deterioration. The appraiser shall consider any evidence presented by the
property owner demonstrating physical deterioration that is unusual for the type of
personal property being appraised. 
(ii) Functional obsolescence. The appraisal staff shall consider any evidence presented
by the property owner demonstrating functional obsolescence for the type of personal
property being appraised. One method the appraisal staff may use to determine the
amount of functional obsolescence is to trend the original cost new for inflation to arrive
at the reproduction cost new, then deduct the cost of a newer replacement model with
similar or improved functionality. 
(iii) Economic obsolescence. The appraisal staff shall consider any evidence presented
by the property owner demonstrating economic obsolescence for the type of personal
property being appraised. One method the appraisal staff may use to determine the
amount of economic obsolescence is to capitalize the difference between the economic
rent of an item of personal property before and after the occurrence of the adverse
economic influence. 
(g) Income approach. The income approach to value estimates the value of personal
property by determining the current value of the projected income stream. This approach







is most applicable to machinery, equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, and trade
fixtures. The approach should only consider the income directly attributable to the
personal property being valued and not the income attributable to the real or intangible
personal property forming the same business. The appraisal staff may use one of the
following methods when using the income approach for the appraisal of applicable
personal property:
1. Straight-line capitalization method. The straight-line capitalization method estimates
the income approach value of personal property by computing the investment necessary
to produce the net income attributable to the personal property. In essence, it is
determined by first computing the potential gross income for a subject property by taking
the monthly rent, when that is the rental basis, and multiplying that total by twelve
months. The potential gross income is then adjusted to a net operating income by
subtracting any expenses that legitimately represent the costs necessary for production of
that income. The net operating income will represent the amount of revenue left after
operating expenses that is available to return the investment, pay property tax on the
property, and return a profit to the owner. 
(i) Income and expense analysis. While complete data is not required on each individual
property, there must be sufficient data to develop typical unit rents, typical collection loss
ratios, and typical expense ratios for various type properties. Income and expense figures
used in the income approach must reflect current market conditions and typical
management. Actual figures may be used when they meet this criterion. When actual
figures are not available or appear to be unrepresentative, typical figures should be used.
Income and expense analysis builds upon the following important components: typical
unit rent, potential gross rent, collection loss, typical gross income, typical expenses, and
typical net income. Excluded are expenses such as depreciation charges, debt service,
income taxes, and business expenses not associated with the property. 
(ii) Capitalization. Capitalization involves the conversion of typical net income into an
estimate of value. The estimated income is divided by the capitalization rate to arrive the
estimated income approach value. The capitalization rate consists of three components.
The discount rate, the recapture rate, and the effective tax rate. The discount rate
represents the amount of return a prudent investor could reasonably expect on an
investment in the subject property. The recapture rate represents the return of the
potential investment. The effective tax rate represents the portion of the income stream
allocated to pay resulting ad valorem taxes on the property. 
(I) Discount rate. The appraiser should calculate the appropriate discount rate through a
method known as the band of investment. The band of investment represents the
weighted-average cost of the money needed to purchase the applicable personal property.
The appraiser determines the percentage of the cost typically borrowed and multiplies this
percentage times the typical cost of borrowing. The appraiser then determines the
remaining percentage of the cost typically contributed by an investor and multiplies this
percentage times the expected rate of return to the investor. An analysis of similar
properties might reveal the discount rate typical for a property of a given type. 
(II) Recapture rate. The appraiser should calculate the recapture rate by dividing one by
the number of years remaining in the economic life of the subject property. The resulting
percentage is the current year’s recapture rate. 







(III) Effective tax rate. The appraiser should calculate the effective tax rate by
multiplying the forty percent assessment level times the tax rate in the jurisdiction in
which the subject property is located. The effective tax rate is included in the
capitalization rate because market value is yet unknown, and property taxes can be
addressed as a percentage of that unknown value in lieu of their inclusion as an expense
in calculation of net annual income. 
2. Direct sales analysis method. The direct sales analysis method estimates the income
approach value of personal property by computing the relationship between income and
sales data. This relationship is expressed as a factor. The method represents a blend of the
sales comparison and income approaches because it involves application of income data
in conjunction with sales data. Sales of items similar to the subject property are divided
by the gross rents, for which they or identical properties are leased, to develop gross
income multipliers. A gross income multiplier is selected as typical for the market, and
multiplied against the gross income of the subject, or that of an identical property, to
result in an estimated value. Limiting the income to rental income only produces a gross
rental multiplier. 
(i) Gross income or rent multiplier. The appraiser should compute the gross income
multiplier by dividing the typical gross income on the personal property by the typical
sales price of the personal property. The appraiser should compute the gross rent
multiplier by dividing the typical gross rent on the personal property by the typical sales
price of the personal property. The appraiser must identify the specific item of personal
property to be valued and determine the typical gross income as gross income is
determined in Rule 560-11-10-.08(5)(g)1.(i). The item is then stratified according to its
typical use. Typical use strata may include, but are not limited to, office equipment,
light-duty manufacturing equipment, heavy-duty manufacturing equipment, retail sales
equipment, furniture, personal fixtures, trade fixtures, restaurant equipment, or any other
stratum the appraiser believes will have similar sensitivity to market fluctuations as the
subject item. The appraiser may develop an individual multiplier on a single item of
personal property when there is sufficient sales and rent information. This multiplier may
then be used for similar items of personal property for which there may be limited sales
and rent information. The income approach value estimate is computed by multiplying
the estimated gross income times the gross income multiplier or the gross rent times the
gross rent multiplier. 
(I) Adjustments. Income data and sales prices used in the development of income
multipliers should be reasonably current. Older sales may be matched against recent
income figures when the sales are adjusted for time. Sales must also be adjusted for
financing, condition, optional equipment, and level-of-trade. 
(6) Final estimate of fair market value. After completing all calculations, considering
the information supplied by the property owner, and considering the reliability of sales,
cost, income and expense information, the appraiser will correlate any values indicated by
those approaches to value that are deemed to have been appropriate for the subject
property and form their opinion of the fair market value. The appraisal staff shall present
the resulting proposed assessment, along with all supporting documentation, to the board
of tax assessors for an assessment to be made by that board.
Authority O.C.G.A. Secs. 48-2-12, 48-5-2, 48-5-5, 48-5-10, 48-5-11, 48-5-12, 48-5-16, 48-5-18, 48-5-20,







48-5-105, 48- 5-105.1, 48-5-269, 48-5-269.1, 48-5-299, 48-5-300, 48-5-314, 50-17-29. History. Original
Rule entitled “Personal Property Appraisal” adopted. F. Sept 20, 1999; eff. Oct. 10, 1999.





		Tax Assessor- Audit Firm Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Audit Firm Backup

		1-a

		1-b

		2-a

		2-b

		3-a

		3-b








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #8


Water System Lee Pope


Approval of the Water System's request to award Bid #900- Water Distribution Parts to eight companies that were low bidders on items 


used for distribution and repair in an aggregate amount not to exceed $256,709.30.


Items used by the Water System for repair and maintenance in distribution are purchased as needed.  Quantities ordered vary depending 


on the need, so exact quantities cannot be predetermined.  Enough stock is kept in inventory at the Distribution Shop to avoid water 


customers being without water for long periods of time when there is a main break that needs emergency repair. 


 


The eight companies recommended for contracts and amounts are:   


 


Delta Municipal Supply Co., Inc. at $60,445.84 


Ferguson Waterworks at $5,857.68 


Hayes Pipe Supply, Inc. at $51,183.80 


HD Supply Waterworks at $13,566.00 


Kendall Supply, Inc. at $60,919.80 


Utilities Supply at $2,134.00 


Dublin Winwater at $8,187.08 


Southern Pipe & Supply at $54,415.10


Approval of the Water System's request to award Bid #900- Water Distribution Parts to eight companies that were low bidders on items 


used for distribution and repair in an aggregate amount not to exceed $256,709.30.


Funding is budgeted in the Water System repairs to meters and lines.  Bid #900 is not to exceed $256,709.30.


Yes Annually


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


This request is based off of an annual bid.  The Board last approved this type of request on February 14, 2013.


ConsentAugust 14, 2014







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  August 14, 2014 
 
Subject: Bid #900 – Water Distribution Parts 
 
The Water System maintains an inventory of repair and replacement parts to use as 
needed during year to keep the water distribution system working properly.  As the parts 
are used, the inventory must be replenished.  Invitation to Bid #900 was issued to 
establish prices for 227 such items for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
Invitations were direct-mailed to eleven vendors.  Invitations were extended via the 
Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  An additional 144 vendors were notified through the 
Internet-based Georgia Procurement Registry. 
 
Nine vendors responded to the invitation to bid, compared to six last year.  Staff’s 
analysis of bids revealed that one vendor (Fortiline Water Works) had made errors in 
their unit price calculations, resulting in their request to withdraw their bid from the 
competition.  Another vendor (Kendall Supply) asked to withdraw their bids for items 10, 
11, and 159 because of pricing errors.  In processing the bids, staff identified price 
extension errors in a number of the companies’ bids, and corrected them in conformance 
with standard practices.  The corrected numbers are shown in red on the spread sheet. 
 
Items 12 (6” Hersey meter) and 13 (8” Hersey meter) are not recommended for award.  
Last year, four companies submitted bids for these two items, with the awarded unit 
prices being $5,200 for the 6” meter and $6,382.98 for the 8” meter.  This year, only one 
company bid these two items, at prices of $8,860.00 and $11,950 respectively.  Other 
options will be considered to meet this need.   
 
The Water System recommends that each item be awarded to the lowest bidder, which 
means that all eight remaining vendors would be awarded contracts, with a total not-to-
exceed value of $256,709.30.  The Purchasing Department supports the Water System’s 
recommendation of awards to the eight vendors. 
 
 
Attachment 







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


BACKFLOW 
PREVENTOR


1 6"  DDCII Double Detector Check Valve 
Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves


  1,600.00 10 NA NA 1,620.00 16,200.00 0.00 1,657.76 16,577.60 1,635.00 16,350.00


2 8"  DDCII Double DetectorCheck Valve 
Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves


  2,590.00 20 NA NA 2,689.47 53,789.40 0.00 2,732.63 54,652.60 2,690.00 53,800.00


3 4" Backflow Preventor Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


     884.50 2 NA NA 900.00 1,800.00 0.00 951.87 1,903.74 937.00 1,874.00


4 6" Backflow Preventer Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


  1,240.00 1 NA NA 1,340.00 1,340.00 0.00 1,395.72 1,395.72 1,380.00 1,380.00


5 8" Backflow Preventer Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


  2,450.00 1 NA NA 2,505.00 2,505.00 0.00 2,572.19 2,572.19 2,530.00 2,530.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 75,634.40 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 77,101.85 TOTAL 75,934.00


BRASS 
CHECK 
VALVES


6 3/4" Dual Check Valve - 
Lead Free


with inlet 1" female meter thread 
connector x outlet 3/4" female 
national pipe tapered thread


       17.25 500 NA NA 20.95 10,475.00 0.00 21.43 10,715.00 21.00 10,500.00


7 1" Dual Check Valve - 
Lead Free


with inlet 1 1/4" female meter 
thread connector x outlet 1" 
female national pipe tapered 


thread


       19.90 30 NA NA 24.46 733.80 0.00 25.20 756.00 26.00 780.00


8 1 1/2" Double Check Valve 
- Lead Free


Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with 1/4 turn ball valve shut offs


     156.67 30 NA NA 228.89 6,866.70 0.00 182.60 5,478.00 180.00 5,400.00


9 2" Double Check Valve - 
Lead Free


Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with 1/4 turn ball valve shut offs


     185.56 30 NA NA 265.00 7,950.00 0.00 244.90 7,347.00 240.00 7,200.00


10 3/4"  Retrosetter  with 
Valve - Lead Free


equivalent to Ford # Retro-
2CVBHH - NL


       92.77 24 NA NA 120.56 2,893.44 0.00 119.83 2,875.92 117.40 2,817.60


11 1" Retrosetter with Valve - 
Lead Free


equivalent to Ford # Retro-
4CVBH - NL


 NA 24 NA NA 204.07 4,897.68 0.00 215.65 5,175.60 208.60 5,006.40


TOTAL NA TOTAL 33,816.62 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 32,347.52 TOTAL 31,704.00


METERS 12 6"  Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II   5,200.00 1 NA NA 0.00 0.00 No Award No Award 0.00


13 8 " Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II   6,382.00 1 NA NA 0.00 0.00 No Award No Award 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


BRASS 14 3/4"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only


         6.77 240 NA NA 6.69 1,605.60 6.73 1,615.20 7.08 1,699.20 7.00 1,680.00


15 3/4 x 2.25  Meter 
Connection - Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only  


         6.77 20 NA NA 6.89 137.80 15.94 318.80 7.08 141.60 7.00 140.00


16 1"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 


       10.12 50 NA NA 10.87 543.50 27.86 1,393.00 10.89 544.50 10.55 527.50


17 1 1/2"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only


       28.91 48 NA NA 29.20 1,401.60 30.85 1,480.80 30.15 1,447.20 29.20 1,401.60


18 2"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 


       39.92 48 NA NA 40.59 1,948.32 45.04 2,161.92 42.05 2,018.40 40.60 1,948.80


Fayette County Water System
Invitation to Bid #900 - Water Distribution Repair Parts


CATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


1







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


19 3/4" Curb Stop - Lead Free lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


       36.84 120 NA NA 36.45 4,374.00 39.49 4,738.80 38.90 4,668.00 37.65 4,518.00


20 1" Curbstop - Lead Free lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


       56.39 40 NA NA 56.17 2,246.80 60.48 2,419.20 59.61 2,384.40 57.70 2,308.00


21 1 1/2" Curb Stop - Lead 
Free


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


     114.26 20 NA NA 116.65 2,333.00 123.25 2,465.00 120.45 2,409.00 115.35 2,307.00


22 2" Curbstop FIP x FIP - 
Lead Free


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


     165.90 20 NA NA 164.36 3,287.20 179.46 3,589.20 175.45 3,509.00 168.00 3,360.00


23 3/4" Corp Stop Comp - 
Lead Free


 inlet - 3/4" cc thread - outlet 3/4" 
compression - domestic brass 
only 


       22.46 60 NA NA 22.27 1,336.20 34.46 2,067.60 23.75 1,425.00 23.00 1,380.00


24 3/4" Corp Stop IPT - Lead 
Free


 inlet - 3/4" male iron pipe thread -
outlet 3/4" compression - 


       22.46 12 NA NA 22.27 267.24 34.46 413.52 23.75 285.00 23.00 276.00


25 1" Corp Stop Comp - Lead 
Fre


 inlet - 1" cc thread -      outlet - 
1" compression - domestic brass 
only 


       34.07 60 NA NA 33.67 2,020.20 45.34 2,720.40 35.92 2,155.20 34.75 2,085.00


26 1" Corp Stop IPT - Lead 
Free


 inlet - 1" male iron pipe thread -   
outlet 1" compression - domestic 
brass only 


       34.07 12 NA NA 33.00 396.00 45.34 544.08 35.92 431.04 34.75 417.00


27 3/4" Adapter  Compression 
- Lead Free


 3/4" compression x        3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       10.32 100 NA NA 10.10 1,010.00 10.92 1,092.00 10.89 1,089.00 10.55 1,055.00


28 1"  Adapter Compression - 
Lead Free


1" compression x              1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       12.22 100 NA NA 11.95 1,195.00 12.89 1,289.00 12.90 1,290.00 12.50 1,250.00


29 1 1/2" Adapter 
Compression - Lead Free


 1 1/2 compression x          1 1/2 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       34.42 12 NA NA 33.15 397.80 35.66 427.92 35.32 423.84 34.15 409.80


30 1x3/4" Adapter 
Compression - Lead Free


 1" compression x               3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       11.40 100 NA NA 11.37 1,137.00 11.29 1,129.00 12.06 1,206.00 11.50 1,150.00


31 2"  Adapter Compression - 
Lead Free


2" compression x              2" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       48.71 12 NA NA 48.58 582.96 51.96 623.52 51.46 617.52 50.00 600.00


32 3/4" Compression Coupling 
- Lead Free


 3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only 


       12.52 100 NA NA 12.42 1,242.00 13.32 1,332.00 13.26 1,326.00 13.00 1,300.00


33 M&H 129 Valve Seat 
Gasket -rubber


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 100 NA NA 14.13 1,413.00 14.53 1,453.00 15.17 1,517.00 15.00 1,500.00


33A 1 1/2" Compression 
Coupling - Lead Free


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 20 NA NA 47.51 950.20 51.21 1,024.20 50.75 1,015.00 49.10 982.00


34 2" Compression  Coupling -
Lead Free 


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 20 NA NA 63.95 1,279.00 69.17 1,383.40 68.51 1,370.20 66.30 1,326.00


35 1" U Branch  Flare (14) - 
Lead Free


 1" flared copper x 34 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only 


       52.17 10 NA NA 51.60 516.00 59.27 592.70 56.32 563.20 53.50 535.00


36 1" U  Branch  Comp (14) - 
Lead Free


1" comp. Copper x 3/4 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only


       55.85 20 NA NA 61.51 1,230.20 59.52 1,190.40 57.04 1,140.80 55.25 1,105.00


2







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


37 1x1x1" Comp Tee - Lead 
Free


 1" comp. end runs x 1" comp 
side outlet - domestic brass only 


       32.48 10 NA NA 32.13 321.30 43.86 438.60 34.33 343.30 33.25 332.50


38 1 x 1 x 3/4 Comp. Service 
Tee - Lead Free


 1" comp. end runs x 3/4" comp. 
side outlet - domestic brass only 


       33.42 10 NA NA 33.38 333.80 43.86 438.60 35.25 352.50 34.10 341.00


39 1 x 3/4 x 3/4 Comp. 
Service Tee- Lead Free


 1" comp.  End runs x 3/4"' 
comp. Side outlet - domestic 
brass only 


       32.41 10 NA NA 32.41 324.10 33.73 337.30 34.18 341.80 33.10 331.00


40 3/4x3/4x1" WYE - lead free domestic brass only        25.75 10 NA NA 25.99 259.90 27.07 270.70 27.44 274.40 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 34,089.72 TOTAL 38,949.86 TOTAL 35,988.10 TOTAL 34,566.20


BRASS 
NIPPLES/    
BUSHING


41 3/4" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          1.55 100 NA NA 1.26 126.00 0.00 1.91 191.00 1.60 160.00


42 1" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          2.15 100 NA NA 1.85 185.00 0.00 2.82 282.00 2.35 235.00


43 1 1/2" Brass Closed Nipple 
- lead free


domestic brass only          4.25 60 NA NA 3.65 219.00 0.00 5.52 331.20 4.45 267.00


44 2" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          6.59 60 NA NA 5.57 334.20 0.00 8.40 504.00 6.80 408.00


45 2x4 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        10.59 12 NA NA 9.09 109.08 0.00 13.69 164.28 11.05 132.60


46 2 x 6 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        15.55 12 NA NA 13.40 160.80 0.00 20.22 242.64 16.30 195.60


47 2 x 12 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        29.25 12 NA NA 26.42 317.04 0.00 39.83 477.96 32.10 385.20


48 1 1/2" Gate Valve  Brass - 
lead free


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 


       32.93 10 NA NA 52.82 528.20 0.00 56.90 569.00 51.00 510.00


49 2" Gate Valve  Brass - lead 
free


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 


       44.99 20 NA NA 82.97 1,659.40 0.00 84.29 1,685.80 76.00 1,520.00


50 1 x 3/4 Brass Hex Bushing -
lead free


 1" female iron pipe thread x 3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


         3.73 20 NA NA 4.94 98.80 0.00 6.73 134.60 6.10 122.00


51 1 1/2 X 1 Brass Hex 
Bushing - lead free


 1 1/2" female iron pipe thread x 
1" male iron pipe thread - 
domestic brass only 


         8.87 20 NA NA 11.99 239.80 0.00 16.32 326.40 14.75 295.00


52 2 x 1 Brass Hex Bushing - 
lead free


2" female iron pipe thread x 1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       10.85 20 NA NA 14.79 295.80 0.00 20.13 402.60 18.15 363.00


53 2 1/2 x 2  Brass Hex 
Bushing - lead free


Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 2


       12.40 60 NA NA 36.83 2,209.80 0.00 50.79 3,047.40 0.00


54 2 x 1 1/2"  Bushing - lead 
free


 Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 1 1/2  


         9.73 60 NA NA 23.49 1,409.40 0.00 20.13 1,207.80 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 7,892.32 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 9,566.68 TOTAL 4,593.40


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


3







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


TAPPING 
SADDLES


55 2 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle - 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       11.40 4 NA NA 30.18 120.72 15.92 63.68 16.87 67.48 14.45 57.80


56 2" X 3/4" Tapping Saddle - 
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       11.40 4 NA NA 17.77 71.08 15.92 63.68 16.87 67.48 14.45 57.80


57 2 x 1 Tapping Saddle  PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       12.51 4 NA NA 30.18 120.72 15.92 63.68 16.87 67.48 14.45 57.80


58 2 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.88 - 3.00


       12.51 4 NA NA 0.00 15.92 63.68 16.87 67.48 16.10 64.40


59 3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50


       13.56 4 NA NA 31.73 126.92 19.46 77.84 21.65 86.60 18.55 74.20


60 3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96


       13.56 4 NA NA 31.73 126.92 19.46 77.84 21.65 86.60 23.75 95.00


61 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96


       14.17 4 NA NA 33.03 132.12 19.46 77.84 21.65 86.60 23.75 95.00


62 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50


       13.50 4 NA NA 33.03 132.12 19.46 77.84 21.65 86.60 18.55 74.20


63 4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       15.39 4 NA NA 34.92 139.68 26.95 107.80 21.65 86.60 18.50 74.00


64 4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       15.39 4 NA NA 24.50 98.00 26.95 107.80 21.65 86.60 18.50 74.00


65 4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       15.39 4 NA NA 34.92 139.68 26.95 107.80 21.65 86.60 18.50 74.00


66 4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       15.99 4 NA NA 24.50 98.00 26.95 107.80 21.65 86.60 18.50 74.00


67 4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       20.02 2 NA NA 23.30 46.60 27.43 54.86 27.58 55.16 23.65 47.30


68 4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       20.97 2 NA NA 32.30 64.60 27.43 54.86 27.58 55.16 23.65 47.30


69 6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90


       16.76 8 NA NA 37.25 298.00 26.11 208.88 26.63 213.04 22.80 182.40


70 6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.90 - 7.22


       19.70 8 NA NA 28.82 230.56 26.11 208.88 26.63 213.04 22.80 182.40


71 6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90


       16.76 8 NA NA 37.25 298.00 26.11 208.88 26.63 213.04 22.80 182.40


72 6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
6.90 -7.22


       19.70 8 NA NA 26.82 214.56 26.11 208.88 26.63 213.04 22.80 182.40


73 8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63


       23.00 8 NA NA 43.39 347.12 29.53 236.24 26.87 214.96 23.05 184.40


74 8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42


       21.50 8 NA NA 32.20 257.60 29.53 236.24 29.15 233.20 25.00 200.00


75 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread  -double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42


       21.50 8 NA NA 32.20 257.60 29.53 236.24 29.15 233.20 25.00 200.00


76 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63


       23.00 8 NA NA 43.39 347.12 29.53 236.24 26.87 214.96 23.05 184.40


77 10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       27.79 6 NA NA 52.08 312.48 36.85 221.10 35.46 212.76 30.40 182.40


78 10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       27.79 6 NA NA 38.69 232.14 36.85 221.10 35.46 212.76 30.40 182.40


79 10 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       27.79 6 NA NA 52.08 312.48 36.85 221.10 35.46 212.76 30.40 182.40


80 10 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       27.79 6 NA NA 38.69 232.14 36.85 221.10 35.46 212.76 30.40 182.40


81 10 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       35.39 2 NA NA 40.52 81.04 46.90 93.80 45.75 91.50 39.20 78.40


4







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


82 10 x 2 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       35.39 2 NA NA 60.97 121.94 46.90 93.80 45.75 91.50 39.20 78.40


83 12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       33.34 4 NA NA 61.80 247.20 44.20 176.80 45.21 180.84 38.75 155.00


84 12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32


       33.34 4 NA NA 38.23 152.92 44.20 176.80 45.21 180.84 38.75 155.00


85 12 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       33.34 4 NA NA 61.80 247.20 44.20 176.80 45.21 180.84 38.75 155.00


86 12 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32


       33.34 4 NA NA 38.23 152.92 44.20 176.80 45.21 180.84 38.75 155.00


87 12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       42.42 2 NA NA 70.63 141.26 56.25 112.50 57.11 114.22 49.00 98.00


88 12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       41.64 2 NA NA 47.74 95.48 56.25 112.50 57.11 114.22 49.00 98.00


89 16 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       56.00 2 NA NA 75.36 150.72 67.68 135.36 70.83 141.66 61.00 122.00


90 16 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       56.00 2 NA NA 75.36 150.72 67.68 135.36 70.83 141.66 61.00 122.00


91 16 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI  
IPT


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       65.19 2 NA NA 84.59 169.18 97.21 194.42 96.93 193.86 83.00 166.00


92 20 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thead - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       47.97 2 NA NA 129.74 259.48 111.06 222.12 184.86 369.72 157.00 314.00


93 20 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       47.97 2 NA NA 129.74 259.48 111.06 222.12 184.86 369.72 157.00 314.00


94 20 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       66.06 2 NA NA 137.56 275.12 127.39 254.78 184.86 369.72 157.00 314.00


95 24 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
25.80


       70.00 2 NA NA 152.60 305.20 116.99 233.98 195.43 390.86 166.00 332.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 7,566.82 TOTAL 6,289.82 TOTAL 6,784.56 TOTAL 5,851.60


REPAIR 
CLAMP


96 2"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.35 - 2.63


       47.24 10 NA NA 50.98 509.80 52.81 528.10 49.03 490.30 47.50 475.00


97 2 1/2"  CI Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.70 - 3.00


       50.25 10 NA NA 56.80 568.00 58.04 580.40 50.74 507.40 49.10 491.00


98 3"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -        O.D. 
3.46 - 3.70


       54.68 10 NA NA 62.29 622.90 61.20 612.00 56.98 569.80 55.15 551.50


99 3"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -     O.D. 
3.73 - 4.00


       55.21 10 NA NA 62.29 622.90 62.97 629.70 56.98 569.80 55.15 551.50


100 4"  PVC  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -          O.D. 
4.45 - 4.73


       56.60 10 NA NA 68.48 684.80 68.38 683.80 57.18 571.80 55.25 552.50


101 4"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 4.74 
- 5.14


       58.05 10 NA NA 68.48 684.80 68.69 686.90 60.10 601.00 58.10 581.00


102 6" PVC Repair  Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 6.56 
- 6.96


       62.35 20 NA NA 76.06 1,521.20 76.71 1,534.20 65.26 1,305.20 63.05 1,261.00


103 6"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -      O.D 
6.84 - 7.24


       68.01 20 NA NA 76.06 1,521.20 77.82 1,556.40 70.57 1,411.40 68.00 1,360.00


104 8"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.54 
- 8.94


       73.20 20 NA NA 89.39 1,787.80 90.45 1,809.00 75.76 1,515.20 73.20 1,464.00


105 8"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.99 
- 9.39


       73.20 20 NA NA 89.39 1,787.80 93.21 1,864.20 75.76 1,515.20 73.20 1,464.00


106 10"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -      O.D. 10.64 - 
11.04


     103.65 10 NA NA 142.16 1,421.60 109.62 1,096.20 108.40 1,084.00 104.75 1,047.50


5







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


107 10"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -     O.D. 11.04 - 
11.44


     103.65 10 NA NA 142.16 1,421.60 111.92 1,119.20 108.40 1,084.00 104.75 1,047.50


108 12"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -       O.D. 12.62 
- 13.02


     115.04 10 NA NA 165.28 1,652.80 141.82 1,418.20 123.32 1,233.20 119.15 1,191.50


109 12"   CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -         O.D. 
13.10 - 13.50


     115.04 10 NA NA 165.28 1,652.80 148.11 1,481.10 123.32 1,233.20 119.15 1,191.50


110 16"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 17.15 - 17.90 - 16" long      215.80 2 NA NA 315.00 630.00 347.26 694.52 225.72 451.44 218.10 436.20


111 18"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 19.23 - 19.54 - 16" long      227.40 2 NA NA 340.90 681.80 366.43 732.86 237.90 475.80 230.00 460.00


112 20"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 21.52 - 22.27 - 16" long      240.95 2 NA NA 352.90 705.80 387.89 775.78 252.22 504.44 241.00 482.00


113 24" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 25.80 - 26.32 - 16" long      344.68 2 NA NA 656.47 1,312.94 663.07 1,326.14 466.32 932.64 446.00 892.00


114 30" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 31.74 - 32.94 - 16" long      396.43 2 NA NA 875.28 1,750.56 769.31 1,538.62 530.09 1,060.18 507.00 1,014.00


115 6 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread        57.15 6 NA NA 91.79 550.74 87.74 526.44 90.78 544.68 58.00 348.00


116 6 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread        58.00 6 NA NA 91.79 550.74 87.74 526.44 92.06 552.36 58.60 351.60


117 6 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread        57.15 6 NA NA 91.79 550.74 87.74 526.44 90.78 544.68 58.00 348.00


118 6 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread        58.00 6 NA NA 91.79 550.74 87.74 526.44 92.06 552.36 58.60 351.60


119 8 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread        64.65 6 NA NA 104.24 625.44 98.20 589.20 104.26 625.56 65.35 392.10


120 8 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread        64.65 6 NA NA 104.24 625.44 98.20 589.20 104.26 625.56 65.35 392.10


121 8 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread        64.65 6 NA NA 104.24 625.44 98.20 589.20 104.26 625.56 65.35 392.10


122 8 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread        64.65 6 NA NA 104.24 625.44 98.20 589.20 104.26 625.56 65.35 392.10


TOTAL NA TOTAL 26,245.82 TOTAL 25,129.88 TOTAL 21,812.32 TOTAL 19,481.30


COUPLING 123 2" Galvanized Dresser 
Coupling


compression - screw type        14.12 12 NA NA 29.66 355.92 0.00 15.90 190.80 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 355.92 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 190.80 TOTAL 0.00


VALVES 124 4" MJ Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs      


     299.86 2 NA NA 0.00 382.00 764.00 391.25 782.50 410.85 821.70


125 6" Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs


     387.99 4 NA NA 0.00 486.00 1,944.00 506.25 2,025.00 522.15 2,088.60


126 8" Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs


     417.43 4 NA NA 0.00 770.00 3,080.00 787.50 3,150.00 813.65 3,254.60


127 10" MJ Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint    


gland packs


     938.37 2 NA NA 0.00 1,199.54 2,399.08 1,224.38 2,448.76 1,260.00 2,520.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 8,187.08 TOTAL 8,406.26 TOTAL 8,684.90


WHEEL 
VALVE


128 4" Wheel Valve - O,S & Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     281.05 4 NA NA 343.45 1,373.80 510.00 2,040.00 476.88 1,907.52 515.00 2,060.00


129 6" Wheel Valve - O,S,& Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     375.65 4 NA NA 530.00 2,120.00 749.63 2,998.52 619.38 2,477.52 746.00 2,984.00


6







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


130 8" Wheel Valve - O,S & Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     587.10 4 NA NA 788.80 3,155.20 1,229.00 4,916.00 946.25 3,785.00 1,222.00 4,888.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 6,649.00 TOTAL 9,954.52 TOTAL 8,170.04 TOTAL 9,932.00


FITTINGS 131 2"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       63.94 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 78.00 468.00 95.50 573.00


132 3"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       66.00 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 82.08 492.48 78.00 468.00


133 4"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       77.85 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 96.52 579.12 91.50 549.00


134 6"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     106.11 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 134.52 1,345.20 127.60 1,276.00


135 8"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     135.25 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 168.72 1,687.20 160.00 1,600.00


136 10"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     198.60 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 248.52 1,491.12 233.30 1,399.80


137 12"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     251.40 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 316.16 1,896.96 296.80 1,780.80


138 6" Plug domestic only        49.08 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 63.08 378.48 62.00 372.00


139 6" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only        68.97 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 88.92 533.52 84.35 506.10


140 8" Plug domestic only        69.64 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 89.68 538.08 85.10 510.60


141 8" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only        89.53 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 115.52 693.12 109.60 657.60


142 6" Cap domestic only        32.50 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 41.80 250.80 59.85 359.10


143 8" Cap domestic only        51.07 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 66.12 396.72 85.80 514.80


144 6"  45 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     103.60 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 129.20 775.20 122.55 735.30


145 6"  90 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     118.10 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 147.44 884.64 139.85 839.10


146 6"  22 1/2 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


       97.65 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 121.60 729.60 115.35 692.10


147 6"  11 1/4 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


       99.65 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 123.88 743.28 117.50 705.00


148 8"  11 1/4 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     127.35 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 158.84 953.04 150.70 904.20


149 8"  22 1/2 Degree  Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     135.25 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 168.72 1,012.32 160.00 960.00


150 8"  45  Degree  Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     137.20 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 171.76 1,030.56 162.95 977.70


151 8"  90  Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     161.60 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 202.92 1,217.52 192.50 1,155.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 18,096.96 TOTAL 17,535.20


FIRE 
HYDRANTS


152 Fire Hydrant 3-way traffic -  3 1/2 bury - open 
left - base MJ 


  1,105.00 10 NA NA 0.00 1,733.85 17,338.50 1,628.98 16,289.80 1,520.00 15,200.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 17,338.50 TOTAL 16,289.80 TOTAL 15,200.00


7







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


153 M&H 129 FH Riser (12) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      191.58 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 200.89 1,205.34 0.00


154 M&H 129 FH Riser (18) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      206.32 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 216.34 1,298.04 0.00


155 M&H 129 FH Riser (24) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      221.05 6 NA NA 0.00 0.00 231.79 1,390.74 0.00


156 M&H 129 Valve Seat 
Gasket -rub


        11.53 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 36.32 363.20 0.00


157 M&H 129 Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        72.93 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 75.72 757.20 0.00


158 M&H 129 Hydrant Gasket          6.55 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 6.55 65.50 0.00


159 M&H Operating Nut left hand open        58.32 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 214.42 2,144.20 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 7,224.22 TOTAL 0.00


160 Kennedy K-10   Flat Repair 
Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      151.05 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 158.39 1,583.90 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 1,583.90 TOTAL 0.00


161 Clow 2500 FH  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      132.63 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 139.08 1,390.80 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 1,390.80 TOTAL 0.00


162 4 1/2 Clow Medal FH 
Repair Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        81.05 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 91.95 919.50 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 919.50 TOTAL 0.00


163 Kennedy K-11 Screw 
Repair Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      333.34 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 385.47 3,854.70 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 3,854.70 TOTAL 0.00


164 Mueller 300  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        91.95 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 96.86 968.60 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 968.60 TOTAL 0.00


165 Amer. Darling  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        82.16 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 134.80 1,348.00 0.00


166 Amer. Darling Operating 
Nut


73-1 - left hand open      165.90 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 192.59 1,925.90 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 3,273.90 TOTAL 0.00


167 M-94 Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        81.05 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 96.25 962.50 100.00 1,000.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 962.50 TOTAL 1,000.00


HYDRANT 
BOLTS


168 Fire Hydrant Breakaway 
Bolt


         5.16 100 NA NA 0.00 0.00 6.80 680.00 0.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 680.00 TOTAL 0.00


169 6" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling


domestic only        95.05 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 123.12 1,231.20 116.80 1,168.00


170 8" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling


domestic only      141.85 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 183.16 1,831.60 173.75 1,737.50


KENNEDY    
K-10 REPAIR 


PARTS


M & H 
REPAIR 
PARTS


CLOW 
MEDAL. 
REPAIR 
PARTS


KENNEDY K-
11 SCREW 


REPAIR 
PARTS


MUELLER 
REPAIR 
PART


A.D. MARK 
73 REPAIR 


PARTS


U.S. PIPE 
REPAIR 
PARTS


CLOW 2500 
REPAIR 
PARTS


ANCHOR 
COUPLINGS -


BOLTS - 
ROD


8







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


171 3/4" All Thread Rod 10 ft. lenghts          1.23 300 NA NA 0.00 0.00 1.39 417.00 2.50 750.00


172 3/4 x 3 1/2" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts


         0.89 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 1.27 317.50 1.50 375.00


173 3/4 x 4" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts


         0.96 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 1.35 337.50 1.55 387.50


174 3/4 x 3 1/2" Shoulder Bolts 
with Nuts


         1.27 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 1.76 440.00 2.00 500.00


175 3/4 x 4 Shoulder Bolts with 
Nuts


         1.38 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 2.28 570.00 2.25 562.50


176 Eye Bolts with Nuts          1.65 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 2.24 560.00 2.25 562.50


177 3/4 Nuts          0.29 250 NA NA 0.00 0.00 2.60 650.00 0.40 100.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 6,354.80 TOTAL 6,143.00


178 2" Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          1.68 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 3.24 32.40 1.75 17.50


179 3"  Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          1.82 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 3.51 35.10 1.90 19.00


180 4"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          2.33 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 4.49 44.90 2.45 24.50


181 6"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          2.83 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 5.46 109.20 3.00 60.00


182 8"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          3.93 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 7.57 151.40 4.10 82.00


183 10"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          4.76 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 9.17 183.40 5.00 100.00


184 12"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          5.46 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 10.53 105.30 5.75 57.50


185 2" MJ Gasket          1.46 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 1.10 11.00 1.55 15.50


186 3" MJ Gasket          1.94 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 3.75 37.50 2.05 20.50


187 4" MJ Gasket          1.94 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 3.75 37.50 2.05 20.50


188 6" MJ Gasket          1.94 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 3.75 75.00 2.05 41.00


189 8" MJ Gasket          2.43 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 4.68 93.60 2.55 51.00


190 10" MJ Gasket          2.91 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 5.62 112.40 3.05 61.00


191 12" MJ Gasket          3.93 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 7.57 75.70 4.10 41.00


192 16" MJ Gasket          6.47 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 12.48 124.80 6.75 67.50


193 18" MJ Gasket          7.88 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 15.21 152.10 8.25 82.50


194 20" MJ Gasket          8.29 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 15.99 159.90 8.65 86.50


195 24" MJ Gasket        10.27 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 19.82 198.20 10.75 107.50


196 30" MJ Gasket        24.90 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 48.05 480.50 26.00 260.00


197 2" Transition Gland Pack          7.68 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 23.08 230.80 9.25 92.50


198 3" Transition Gland Pack          6.87 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 17.63 176.30 8.30 83.00


199 4" Transition Gland Pack          9.30 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 22.39 223.90 11.25 112.50


200 6" Transition Gland  Pack        12.53 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 27.54 550.80 15.15 303.00


201 8" Transition Gland Pack        14.15 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 32.96 659.20 17.15 343.00


202 10" Transition Gland Pack        20.21 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 45.95 919.00 24.50 490.00


203 12" Transition Gland Pack        21.02 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 48.21 964.20 25.45 509.00


204 2" MJ Gland Pack          6.06 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 23.08 230.80 7.35 73.50


205 3" MJ Gland Pack          6.47 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 12.48 124.80 7.85 78.50


206 4" MJ Gland Pack          8.89 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 17.16 171.60 10.75 107.50


207 6" MJ Gland Pack        12.13 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 23.40 468.00 14.70 294.00


208 8" MJ Gland Pack        13.74 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 26.52 530.40 16.65 333.00


GASKETS/  
GLAND 
PACKS


9







Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
PriceCATEGORY


DUBLIN WINWATER 
COMPANY


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 
INC.


FORTILINE 
WATERWORKS


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC.


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


209 10" MJ Gland Pack        19.81 20 NA NA 0.00 0.00 38.22 764.40 24.00 480.00


210 12" MJ Gland Pack        20.62 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 39.78 397.80 25.00 250.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 8,631.90 TOTAL 4,764.50


211 4" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         2.00 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 10.28 102.80 5.45 54.50


212 6" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         2.85 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 16.64 166.40 8.55 85.50


213 8" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         4.10 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 17.61 176.10 9.25 92.50


214 16" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       37.65 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 85.11 851.10 39.00 390.00


215 20" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       67.20 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 123.35 1,233.50 69.50 695.00


216 24" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       85.00 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 183.00 1,830.00 97.25 972.50


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 4,359.90 TOTAL 2,290.00


217 Meter Box Plastic box with no lid          7.50 200 NA NA 7.80 1,560.00 0.00 7.69 1,538.00 9.00 1,800.00


218 CI  Meter Lid   -  Extra Cast iron .200" to .700" in 
thickness  


         7.89 300 NA NA 9.45 2,835.00 0.00 9.68 2,904.00 11.00 3,300.00


219 Jumbo Meter Box & Lid Plastic box with plastic lid        24.00 40 NA NA 36.60 1,464.00 0.00 32.45 1,298.00 30.00 1,200.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 5,859.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 5,740.00 TOTAL 6,300.00


VALVE BOX 220 Valve Box Lids   -  Extra          5.47 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 6.71 67.10 10.00 100.00


221 Top Halve of Valve Box - 
24" to 36"


       13.97 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 20.26 202.60 23.00 230.00


222 Bottom Halve of Valve Box 
- 24" to 36" 


       18.22 10 NA NA 0.00 0.00 29.87 298.70 46.00 460.00


223 1"  Valve Box Riser          3.04 16 NA NA 0.00 0.00 4.25 68.00 5.00 80.00


224 2"  Valve Box Riser          5.47 16 NA NA 0.00 0.00 9.59 153.44 9.15 146.40


225 3"  Valve Box Riser          8.50 16 NA NA 0.00 0.00 12.78 204.48 13.75 220.00
226 4"  Valve Box Riser        10.32 16 NA NA 0.00 0.00 18.42 294.72 16.25 260.00


227 6"  Valve Box Riser        17.01 16 NA NA 0.00 0.00 27.55 440.80 25.00 400.00


TOTAL NA TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 1,729.84 TOTAL 1,896.40


NA NA TOTAL BID 
PRICE


198,109.62 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


105,849.66 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


282,429.45 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


245,876.50


ITEMS LISTED ABOVE HAD INCORRECT CALCULATIONS. THE RED LISTED AMOUNTS 
ARE THE CORRECTED CALCULATIONS.


RED 
GASKET 


SETS


METER BOX 
& LIDS


10







BACKFLOW 
PREVENTOR


1 6"  DDCII Double Detector Check Valve 
Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves


  1,600.00 10


2 8"  DDCII Double DetectorCheck Valve 
Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves


  2,590.00 20


3 4" Backflow Preventor Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


     884.50 2


4 6" Backflow Preventer Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


  1,240.00 1


5 8" Backflow Preventer Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with O,S, & Y Valves


  2,450.00 1


BRASS 
CHECK 
VALVES


6 3/4" Dual Check Valve - 
Lead Free


with inlet 1" female meter thread 
connector x outlet 3/4" female 
national pipe tapered thread


       17.25 500


7 1" Dual Check Valve - 
Lead Free


with inlet 1 1/4" female meter 
thread connector x outlet 1" 
female national pipe tapered 


thread


       19.90 30


8 1 1/2" Double Check Valve 
- Lead Free


Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with 1/4 turn ball valve shut offs


     156.67 30


9 2" Double Check Valve - 
Lead Free


Double Check Valve Assembly - 
with 1/4 turn ball valve shut offs


     185.56 30


10 3/4"  Retrosetter  with 
Valve - Lead Free


equivalent to Ford # Retro-
2CVBHH - NL


       92.77 24


11 1" Retrosetter with Valve - 
Lead Free


equivalent to Ford # Retro-
4CVBH - NL


 NA 24


METERS 12 6"  Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II   5,200.00 1


13 8 " Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II   6,382.00 1


BRASS 14 3/4"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only


         6.77 240


15 3/4 x 2.25  Meter 
Connection - Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only  


         6.77 20


16 1"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 


       10.12 50


17 1 1/2"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only


       28.91 48


18 2"  Meter Connection - 
Lead Free


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 


       39.92 48


CATEGORY


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


1,722.22 17,222.20 1,677.00 16,770.00 1,750.00 17,500.00 0.00


2,838.88 56,777.60 2,813.00 56,260.00 2,689.00 53,780.00 0.00


988.88 1,977.76 1,017.00 2,034.00 1,012.00 2,024.00 0.00


1,455.55 1,455.55 1,385.00 1,385.00 1,490.00 1,490.00 0.00


2,672.22 2,672.22 2,787.00 2,787.00 2,673.00 2,673.00 0.00


TOTAL 80,105.33 TOTAL 79,236.00 TOTAL 77,467.00 TOTAL 0.00


21.00 10,500.00 21.50 10,750.00 23.47 11,735.00 0.00


27.27 818.10 24.50 735.00 29.32 879.60 0.00


178.95 5,368.50 198.00 5,940.00 204.00 6,120.00 0.00


245.00 7,350.00 270.00 8,100.00 271.00 8,130.00 0.00


0.00 Withdrawn Withdrawn 144.45 3,466.80 0.00


0.00 Withdrawn Withdrawn 220.00 5,280.00 0.00


TOTAL 24,036.60 TOTAL 25,525.00 TOTAL 35,611.40 TOTAL 0.00


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


6.77 1,624.80 6.60 1,584.00 8.50 2,040.00 0.00


6.77 135.40 6.60 132.00 8.50 170.00 0.00


10.42 521.00 10.20 510.00 12.50 625.00 0.00


28.87 1,385.76 28.20 1,353.60 34.65 1,663.20 0.00


40.20 1,929.60 39.30 1,886.40 48.25 2,316.00 0.00


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


11







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


19 3/4" Curb Stop - Lead Free lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


       36.84 120


20 1" Curbstop - Lead Free lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


       56.39 40


21 1 1/2" Curb Stop - Lead 
Free


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


     114.26 20


22 2" Curbstop FIP x FIP - 
Lead Free


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only


     165.90 20


23 3/4" Corp Stop Comp - 
Lead Free


 inlet - 3/4" cc thread - outlet 3/4" 
compression - domestic brass 
only 


       22.46 60


24 3/4" Corp Stop IPT - Lead 
Free


 inlet - 3/4" male iron pipe thread -
outlet 3/4" compression - 


       22.46 12


25 1" Corp Stop Comp - Lead 
Fre


 inlet - 1" cc thread -      outlet - 
1" compression - domestic brass 
only 


       34.07 60


26 1" Corp Stop IPT - Lead 
Free


 inlet - 1" male iron pipe thread -   
outlet 1" compression - domestic 
brass only 


       34.07 12


27 3/4" Adapter  Compression 
- Lead Free


 3/4" compression x        3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       10.32 100


28 1"  Adapter Compression - 
Lead Free


1" compression x              1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       12.22 100


29 1 1/2" Adapter 
Compression - Lead Free


 1 1/2 compression x          1 1/2 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       34.42 12


30 1x3/4" Adapter 
Compression - Lead Free


 1" compression x               3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


       11.40 100


31 2"  Adapter Compression - 
Lead Free


2" compression x              2" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       48.71 12


32 3/4" Compression Coupling 
- Lead Free


 3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only 


       12.52 100


33 M&H 129 Valve Seat 
Gasket -rubber


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 100


33A 1 1/2" Compression 
Coupling - Lead Free


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 20


34 2" Compression  Coupling -
Lead Free 


3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only


 NA 20


35 1" U Branch  Flare (14) - 
Lead Free


 1" flared copper x 34 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only 


       52.17 10


36 1" U  Branch  Comp (14) - 
Lead Free


1" comp. Copper x 3/4 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only


       55.85 20


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


37.25 4,470.00 36.00 4,320.00 41.05 4,926.00 0.00


57.08 2,283.20 55.50 2,220.00 67.45 2,698.00 53.35 2,134.00


115.35 2,307.00 112.00 2,240.00 124.13 2,482.60 0.00


168.03 3,360.60 177.30 3,546.00 190.00 3,800.00 0.00


22.75 1,365.00 32.50 1,950.00 24.25 1,455.00 25.50 1,530.00


22.75 273.00 32.50 390.00 25.67 308.04 0.00


34.39 2,063.40 43.00 2,580.00 36.70 2,202.00 41.75 2,505.00


34.39 412.68 43.00 516.00 36.70 440.40 0.00


10.42 1,042.00 10.15 1,015.00 11.15 1,115.00 10.20 1,020.00


12.34 1,234.00 12.00 1,200.00 13.20 1,320.00 12.25 1,225.00


33.82 405.84 33.00 396.00 36.10 433.20 0.00


11.54 1,154.00 11.10 1,110.00 12.50 1,250.00 0.00


49.28 591.36 48.00 576.00 52.60 631.20 0.00


12.69 1,269.00 12.30 1,230.00 13.60 1,360.00 12.75 1,275.00


14.52 1,452.00 14.20 1,420.00 15.50 1,550.00 15.10 1,510.00


66.69 1,333.80 47.10 942.00 52.00 1,040.00 0.00


86.56 1,731.20 63.60 1,272.00 69.95 1,399.00 0.00


52.75 527.50 49.50 495.00 60.00 600.00 0.00


54.62 1,092.40 53.40 1,068.00 70.95 1,419.00 0.00


12







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


37 1x1x1" Comp Tee - Lead 
Free


 1" comp. end runs x 1" comp 
side outlet - domestic brass only 


       32.48 10


38 1 x 1 x 3/4 Comp. Service 
Tee - Lead Free


 1" comp. end runs x 3/4" comp. 
side outlet - domestic brass only 


       33.42 10


39 1 x 3/4 x 3/4 Comp. 
Service Tee- Lead Free


 1" comp.  End runs x 3/4"' 
comp. Side outlet - domestic 
brass only 


       32.41 10


40 3/4x3/4x1" WYE - lead free domestic brass only        25.75 10


BRASS 
NIPPLES/    
BUSHING


41 3/4" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          1.55 100


42 1" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          2.15 100


43 1 1/2" Brass Closed Nipple 
- lead free


domestic brass only          4.25 60


44 2" Brass Closed Nipple - 
lead free


domestic brass only          6.59 60


45 2x4 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        10.59 12


46 2 x 6 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        15.55 12


47 2 x 12 Brass Nipple - lead 
free


domestic brass only        29.25 12


48 1 1/2" Gate Valve  Brass - 
lead free


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 


       32.93 10


49 2" Gate Valve  Brass - lead 
free


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 


       44.99 20


50 1 x 3/4 Brass Hex Bushing -
lead free


 1" female iron pipe thread x 3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 


         3.73 20


51 1 1/2 X 1 Brass Hex 
Bushing - lead free


 1 1/2" female iron pipe thread x 
1" male iron pipe thread - 
domestic brass only 


         8.87 20


52 2 x 1 Brass Hex Bushing - 
lead free


2" female iron pipe thread x 1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only


       10.85 20


53 2 1/2 x 2  Brass Hex 
Bushing - lead free


Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 2


       12.40 60


54 2 x 1 1/2"  Bushing - lead 
free


 Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 1 1/2  


         9.73 60


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and 


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


32.87 328.70 31.90 319.00 36.00 360.00 34.90 349.00


33.75 337.50 33.00 330.00 38.10 381.00 0.00


32.73 327.30 32.00 320.00 36.95 369.50 0.00


26.27 262.70 25.50 255.00 30.00 300.00 27.00 270.00


TOTAL 35,220.74 TOTAL 35,176.00 TOTAL 38,654.14 TOTAL 11,818.00


0.00 1.50 150.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.20 220.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 4.40 264.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 6.60 396.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 10.60 127.20 0.00 0.00


0.00 15.50 186.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 29.00 348.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 51.00 510.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 75.50 1,510.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 5.40 108.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 12.50 250.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 24.20 484.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 34.00 2,040.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 25.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 8,093.20 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


13







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


TAPPING 
SADDLES


55 2 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle - 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       11.40 4


56 2" X 3/4" Tapping Saddle - 
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       11.40 4


57 2 x 1 Tapping Saddle  PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50


       12.51 4


58 2 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.88 - 3.00


       12.51 4


59 3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50


       13.56 4


60 3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96


       13.56 4


61 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96


       14.17 4


62 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50


       13.50 4


63 4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       15.39 4


64 4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       15.39 4


65 4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       15.39 4


66 4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       15.99 4


67 4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80


       20.02 2


68 4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63


       20.97 2


69 6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90


       16.76 8


70 6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.90 - 7.22


       19.70 8


71 6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90


       16.76 8


72 6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
6.90 -7.22


       19.70 8


73 8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63


       23.00 8


74 8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42


       21.50 8


75 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread  -double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42


       21.50 8


76 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63


       23.00 8


77 10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       27.79 6


78 10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       27.79 6


79 10 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       27.79 6


80 10 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       27.79 6


81 10 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60


       35.39 2


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


11.39 45.56 14.00 56.00 20.00 80.00 15.50 62.00


11.39 45.56 14.00 56.00 20.00 80.00 15.50 62.00


12.51 50.04 14.00 56.00 22.00 88.00 15.50 62.00


12.51 50.04 15.60 62.40 24.00 96.00 17.75 71.00


13.56 54.24 18.00 72.00 24.00 96.00 18.75 75.00


14.16 56.64 23.00 92.00 24.00 96.00 19.00 76.00


14.16 56.64 23.00 92.00 24.00 96.00 19.00 76.00


13.56 54.24 18.00 72.00 24.00 96.00 18.75 75.00


15.38 61.52 18.00 72.00 25.00 100.00 21.00 84.00


15.98 63.92 0.00 25.00 100.00 22.00 88.00


15.38 61.52 18.00 72.00 25.00 100.00 22.00 88.00


15.98 63.92 0.00 25.00 100.00 22.00 88.00


20.07 40.14 22.90 45.80 27.00 54.00 29.00 58.00


20.96 41.92 0.00 28.00 56.00 29.00 58.00


16.76 134.08 22.00 176.00 23.00 184.00 21.50 172.00


19.69 157.52 22.00 176.00 27.00 216.00 25.00 200.00


16.76 134.08 22.00 176.00 23.00 184.00 21.50 172.00


19.69 157.52 0.00 27.00 216.00 23.00 184.00


21.51 172.08 22.30 178.40 29.50 236.00 29.00 232.00


21.51 172.08 24.10 192.80 29.50 236.00 29.00 232.00


21.51 172.08 24.10 192.80 29.50 236.00 29.00 232.00


21.51 172.08 22.30 178.40 29.50 236.00 29.00 232.00


27.79 166.74 29.40 176.40 38.20 229.20 38.00 228.00


27.79 166.74 29.40 176.40 38.20 229.20 38.00 228.00


27.79 166.74 29.40 176.40 38.20 229.20 38.00 228.00


27.79 166.74 29.40 176.40 38.20 229.20 38.00 228.00


35.38 70.76 37.90 75.80 48.50 97.00 45.00 90.00


14







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


82 10 x 2 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10


       35.39 2


83 12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       33.34 4


84 12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32


       33.34 4


85 12 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       33.34 4


86 12 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32


       33.34 4


87 12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       42.42 2


88 12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20


       41.64 2


89 16 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       56.00 2


90 16 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       56.00 2


91 16 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI  
IPT


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88


       65.19 2


92 20 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI cc thead - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       47.97 2


93 20 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       47.97 2


94 20 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06


       66.06 2


95 24 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
25.80


       70.00 2


REPAIR 
CLAMP


96 2"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.35 - 2.63


       47.24 10


97 2 1/2"  CI Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.70 - 3.00


       50.25 10


98 3"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -        O.D. 
3.46 - 3.70


       54.68 10


99 3"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -     O.D. 
3.73 - 4.00


       55.21 10


100 4"  PVC  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -          O.D. 
4.45 - 4.73


       56.60 10


101 4"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 4.74 
- 5.14


       58.05 10


102 6" PVC Repair  Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 6.56 
- 6.96


       62.35 20


103 6"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -      O.D 
6.84 - 7.24


       68.01 20


104 8"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.54 
- 8.94


       73.20 20


105 8"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.99 
- 9.39


       73.20 20


106 10"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -      O.D. 10.64 - 
11.04


     103.65 10


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


35.38 70.76 37.90 75.80 48.50 97.00 45.00 90.00


33.34 133.36 37.50 150.00 47.00 188.00 46.00 184.00


33.34 133.36 0.00 47.00 188.00 46.00 184.00


33.34 133.36 37.50 150.00 47.00 188.00 44.00 176.00


33.34 133.36 0.00 47.00 188.00 46.00 184.00


41.63 83.26 47.40 94.80 57.10 114.20 53.00 106.00


42.41 84.82 47.40 94.80 58.00 116.00 53.00 106.00


53.09 106.18 0.00 73.00 146.00 93.00 186.00


53.09 106.18 0.00 73.00 146.00 93.00 186.00


70.15 140.30 0.00 96.00 192.00 99.00 198.00


81.20 162.40 153.00 306.00 111.00 222.00 110.00 220.00


81.20 162.40 153.00 306.00 111.00 222.00 110.00 220.00


93.14 186.28 153.00 306.00 128.00 256.00 120.00 240.00


85.54 171.08 162.00 324.00 118.00 236.00 117.00 234.00


TOTAL 4,562.24 TOTAL 4,607.40 TOTAL 6,495.00 TOTAL 6,195.00


49.22 492.20 42.00 420.00 67.50 675.00 57.00 570.00


51.86 518.60 50.80 508.00 71.25 712.50 60.00 600.00


54.67 546.70 57.00 570.00 75.00 750.00 63.00 630.00


56.27 562.70 57.00 570.00 76.00 760.00 65.00 650.00


61.11 611.10 58.00 580.00 84.00 840.00 70.00 700.00


61.40 614.00 58.00 580.00 84.00 840.00 70.00 700.00


69.70 1,394.00 65.50 1,310.00 85.00 1,700.00 79.00 1,580.00


70.72 1,414.40 69.50 1,390.00 85.00 1,700.00 80.00 1,600.00


82.19 1,643.80 77.00 1,540.00 99.00 1,980.00 95.00 1,900.00


84.70 1,694.00 77.00 1,540.00 101.65 2,033.00 97.00 1,940.00


125.35 1,253.50 120.00 1,200.00 151.00 1,510.00 145.00 1,450.00


15







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


107 10"  CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -     O.D. 11.04 - 
11.44


     103.65 10


108 12"  PVC Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -       O.D. 12.62 
- 13.02


     115.04 10


109 12"   CI  Repair Clamp 5-bolt - 15" long -         O.D. 
13.10 - 13.50


     115.04 10


110 16"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 17.15 - 17.90 - 16" long      215.80 2
111 18"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 19.23 - 19.54 - 16" long      227.40 2
112 20"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 21.52 - 22.27 - 16" long      240.95 2
113 24" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 25.80 - 26.32 - 16" long      344.68 2
114 30" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 31.74 - 32.94 - 16" long      396.43 2
115 6 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread        57.15 6


116 6 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread        58.00 6


117 6 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread        57.15 6


118 6 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread        58.00 6


119 8 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread        64.65 6


120 8 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread        64.65 6


121 8 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread        64.65 6


122 8 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread        64.65 6


COUPLING 123 2" Galvanized Dresser 
Coupling


compression - screw type        14.12 12


VALVES 124 4" MJ Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs      


     299.86 2


125 6" Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs


     387.99 4


126 8" Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs


     417.43 4


127 10" MJ Gate Valve domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint    


gland packs


     938.37 2


WHEEL 
VALVE


128 4" Wheel Valve - O,S & Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     281.05 4


129 6" Wheel Valve - O,S,& Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     375.65 4


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


126.04 1,260.40 120.00 1,200.00 151.00 1,510.00 147.00 1,470.00


141.12 1,411.20 132.00 1,320.00 170.00 1,700.00 164.00 1,640.00


143.73 1,437.30 132.00 1,320.00 174.00 1,740.00 170.00 1,700.00


301.47 602.94 211.00 422.00 386.00 772.00 352.00 704.00


318.10 636.20 222.00 444.00 408.00 816.00 367.00 734.00


341.95 683.90 235.00 470.00 432.00 864.00 389.00 778.00


575.64 1,151.28 436.00 872.00 737.00 1,474.00 665.00 1,330.00


664.96 1,329.92 0.00 855.00 1,710.00 770.00 1,540.00


87.61 525.66 82.10 492.60 121.00 726.00 0.00


88.62 531.72 82.10 492.60 121.00 726.00 0.00


87.61 525.66 82.10 492.60 121.00 726.00 0.00


88.62 531.72 82.10 492.60 121.00 726.00 0.00


100.09 600.54 93.00 558.00 138.00 828.00 0.00


102.60 615.60 93.00 558.00 141.00 846.00 0.00


102.60 615.60 93.00 558.00 138.00 828.00 0.00


102.60 615.60 93.00 558.00 141.00 846.00 0.00


TOTAL 23,820.24 TOTAL 20,458.40 TOTAL 30,338.50 TOTAL 22,216.00


17.94 215.28 18.40 220.80 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 215.28 TOTAL 220.80 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


393.00 786.00 416.00 832.00 413.00 826.00 0.00


502.11 2,008.44 538.00 2,152.00 535.00 2,140.00 0.00


801.00 3,204.00 838.00 3,352.00 832.00 3,328.00 0.00


1,249.00 2,498.00 1,300.00 2,600.00 1,293.00 2,586.00 0.00


TOTAL 8,496.44 TOTAL 8,936.00 TOTAL 8,880.00 TOTAL 0.00


528.95 2,115.80 373.00 1,492.00 422.35 1,689.40 0.00


775.00 3,100.00 536.00 2,144.00 608.50 2,434.00 0.00


16







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


130 8" Wheel Valve - O,S & Y domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange


     587.10 4


FITTINGS 131 2"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       63.94 6


132 3"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       66.00 6


133 4"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


       77.85 6


134 6"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     106.11 10


135 8"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     135.25 10


136 10"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     198.60 6


137 12"  Solid Sleeve domestic only - with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs - 12" long


     251.40 6


138 6" Plug domestic only        49.08 6


139 6" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only        68.97 6


140 8" Plug domestic only        69.64 6


141 8" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only        89.53 6


142 6" Cap domestic only        32.50 6


143 8" Cap domestic only        51.07 6


144 6"  45 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     103.60 6


145 6"  90 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     118.10 6


146 6"  22 1/2 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


       97.65 6


147 6"  11 1/4 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


       99.65 6


148 8"  11 1/4 Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     127.35 6


149 8"  22 1/2 Degree  Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     135.25 6


150 8"  45  Degree  Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     137.20 6


151 8"  90  Degree Bend domestic only with Mechanical 
Joint gland packs


     161.60 6


FIRE 
HYDRANTS


152 Fire Hydrant 3-way traffic -  3 1/2 bury - open 
left - base MJ 


  1,105.00 10


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


1,262.86 5,051.44 880.00 3,520.00 997.65 3,990.60 0.00


TOTAL 10,267.24 TOTAL 7,156.00 TOTAL 8,114.00 TOTAL 0.00


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


77.87 467.22 78.00 468.00 82.25 493.50 0.00


91.57 549.42 91.50 549.00 96.70 580.20 0.00


127.62 1,276.20 127.50 1,275.00 134.75 1,347.50 0.00


160.07 1,600.70 160.00 1,600.00 169.00 1,690.00 0.00


235.78 1,414.68 161.50 969.00 248.90 1,493.40 0.00


299.95 1,799.70 205.50 1,233.00 316.65 1,899.90 0.00


59.84 359.04 59.90 359.40 62.00 372.00 0.00


84.36 506.16 84.30 505.80 87.20 523.20 0.00


85.08 510.48 85.00 510.00 87.86 527.16 0.00


109.60 657.60 109.00 654.00 113.25 679.50 0.00


41.86 251.16 62.70 376.20 41.00 246.00 0.00


85.80 514.80 85.50 513.00 64.85 389.10 0.00


122.57 735.42 122.50 735.00 126.70 760.20 0.00


139.88 839.28 139.50 837.00 144.50 867.00 0.00


115.36 692.16 115.00 690.00 119.20 715.20 0.00


117.53 705.18 117.50 705.00 121.50 729.00 0.00


150.70 904.20 150.50 903.00 155.75 934.50 0.00


160.07 960.42 160.00 960.00 165.30 991.80 0.00


162.95 977.70 163.00 978.00 168.27 1,009.62 0.00


192.52 1,155.12 192.50 1,155.00 198.90 1,193.40 0.00


TOTAL 16,876.64 TOTAL 15,975.40 TOTAL 17,442.18 TOTAL 0.00


1,715.60 17,156.00 1,645.00 16,450.00 1,649.00 16,490.00 0.00


TOTAL 17,156.00 TOTAL 16,450.00 TOTAL 16,490.00 TOTAL 0.00


17







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


153 M&H 129 FH Riser (12) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      191.58 6


154 M&H 129 FH Riser (18) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      206.32 6


155 M&H 129 FH Riser (24) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel      221.05 6


156 M&H 129 Valve Seat 
Gasket -rub


        11.53 10


157 M&H 129 Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        72.93 10


158 M&H 129 Hydrant Gasket          6.55 10


159 M&H Operating Nut left hand open        58.32 10


160 Kennedy K-10   Flat Repair 
Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      151.05 10


161 Clow 2500 FH  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      132.63 10


162 4 1/2 Clow Medal FH 
Repair Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        81.05 10


163 Kennedy K-11 Screw 
Repair Kit


traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel      333.34 10


164 Mueller 300  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        91.95 10


165 Amer. Darling  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        82.16 10


166 Amer. Darling Operating 
Nut


73-1 - left hand open      165.90 10


167 M-94 Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel        81.05 10


HYDRANT 
BOLTS


168 Fire Hydrant Breakaway 
Bolt


         5.16 100


169 6" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling


domestic only        95.05 10


170 8" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling


domestic only      141.85 10


KENNEDY    
K-10 REPAIR 


PARTS


M & H 
REPAIR 
PARTS


CLOW 
MEDAL. 
REPAIR 
PARTS


KENNEDY K-
11 SCREW 


REPAIR 
PARTS


MUELLER 
REPAIR 
PART


A.D. MARK 
73 REPAIR 


PARTS


U.S. PIPE 
REPAIR 
PARTS


CLOW 2500 
REPAIR 
PARTS


ANCHOR 
COUPLINGS -


BOLTS - 
ROD


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


197.00 1,182.00 192.00 1,152.00 215.00 1,290.00 0.00


213.00 1,278.00 206.00 1,236.00 230.50 1,383.00 0.00


228.26 1,369.56 221.00 1,326.00 248.00 1,488.00 0.00


35.78 357.80 35.00 350.00 45.00 450.00 0.00


74.56 745.60 72.00 720.00 85.75 857.50 0.00


7.00 70.00 5.90 59.00 11.00 110.00 0.00


209.23 2,092.30 Withdrawn Withdrawn 226.50 2,265.00 0.00


TOTAL 7,095.26 TOTAL 4,843.00 TOTAL 7,843.50 TOTAL 0.00


159.44 1,594.40 151.00 1,510.00 192.00 1,920.00 0.00


TOTAL 1,594.40 TOTAL 1,510.00 TOTAL 1,920.00 TOTAL 0.00


140.00 1,400.00 132.00 1,320.00 160.00 1,600.00 0.00


TOTAL 1,400.00 TOTAL 1,320.00 TOTAL 1,600.00 TOTAL 0.00


92.55 925.50 88.00 880.00 119.00 1,190.00 0.00


TOTAL 925.50 TOTAL 880.00 TOTAL 1,190.00 TOTAL 0.00


377.50 3,775.00 365.00 3,650.00 435.00 4,350.00 0.00


TOTAL 3,775.00 TOTAL 3,650.00 TOTAL 4,350.00 TOTAL 0.00


92.55 925.50 88.00 880.00 119.00 1,190.00 0.00


TOTAL 925.50 TOTAL 880.00 TOTAL 1,190.00 TOTAL 0.00


86.72 867.20 82.00 820.00 111.50 1,115.00 0.00


242.66 2,426.60 229.90 2,299.00 283.00 2,830.00 0.00


TOTAL 3,293.80 TOTAL 3,119.00 TOTAL 3,945.00 TOTAL 0.00


85.55 855.50 81.10 811.00 110.00 1,100.00 0.00


TOTAL 855.50 TOTAL 811.00 TOTAL 1,100.00 TOTAL 0.00


6.31 631.00 4.95 495.00 9.00 900.00 0.00


TOTAL 631.00 TOTAL 495.00 TOTAL 900.00 TOTAL 0.00


116.81 1,168.10 116.00 1,160.00 154.00 1,540.00 0.00


173.77 1,737.70 144.00 1,440.00 222.00 2,220.00 0.00


18







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


171 3/4" All Thread Rod 10 ft. lenghts          1.23 300


172 3/4 x 3 1/2" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts


         0.89 250


173 3/4 x 4" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts


         0.96 250


174 3/4 x 3 1/2" Shoulder Bolts 
with Nuts


         1.27 250


175 3/4 x 4 Shoulder Bolts with 
Nuts


         1.38 250


176 Eye Bolts with Nuts          1.65 250


177 3/4 Nuts          0.29 250


178 2" Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          1.68 10


179 3"  Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          1.82 10


180 4"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          2.33 10


181 6"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          2.83 20


182 8"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          3.93 20


183 10"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          4.76 20


184 12"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe          5.46 10


185 2" MJ Gasket          1.46 10


186 3" MJ Gasket          1.94 10


187 4" MJ Gasket          1.94 10


188 6" MJ Gasket          1.94 20


189 8" MJ Gasket          2.43 20


190 10" MJ Gasket          2.91 20


191 12" MJ Gasket          3.93 10


192 16" MJ Gasket          6.47 10


193 18" MJ Gasket          7.88 10


194 20" MJ Gasket          8.29 10


195 24" MJ Gasket        10.27 10


196 30" MJ Gasket        24.90 10


197 2" Transition Gland Pack          7.68 10


198 3" Transition Gland Pack          6.87 10


199 4" Transition Gland Pack          9.30 10


200 6" Transition Gland  Pack        12.53 20


201 8" Transition Gland Pack        14.15 20


202 10" Transition Gland Pack        20.21 20


203 12" Transition Gland Pack        21.02 20


204 2" MJ Gland Pack          6.06 10


205 3" MJ Gland Pack          6.47 10


206 4" MJ Gland Pack          8.89 10


207 6" MJ Gland Pack        12.13 20


208 8" MJ Gland Pack        13.74 20


GASKETS/  
GLAND 
PACKS


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


0.00 1.70 510.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 1.70 425.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 1.70 425.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.65 662.50 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.95 737.50 0.00 0.00


0.00 1.70 425.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 0.30 75.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 2,905.80 TOTAL 5,860.00 TOTAL 3,760.00 TOTAL 0.00


0.00 2.50 25.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.70 27.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 3.50 35.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 4.25 85.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 5.85 117.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 7.10 142.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 8.10 81.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.20 22.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.90 29.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.90 29.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 2.90 58.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 3.65 73.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 4.35 87.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 5.90 59.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 9.70 97.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 11.80 118.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 12.40 124.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 15.40 154.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 35.00 350.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 14.50 145.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 18.50 185.00 22.85 228.50 0.00


0.00 22.50 450.00 28.50 570.00 0.00


0.00 27.25 545.00 32.50 650.00 0.00


0.00 37.50 750.00 47.50 950.00 0.00


0.00 39.80 796.00 52.40 1,048.00 0.00


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 14.80 148.00 15.75 157.50 0.00


0.00 17.90 179.00 19.70 197.00 0.00


0.00 21.80 436.00 22.60 452.00 0.00


0.00 24.90 498.00 27.40 548.00 0.00


19







CATEGORY


Est
Qty


Item DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS


 Previous
Unit
Price 


209 10" MJ Gland Pack        19.81 20


210 12" MJ Gland Pack        20.62 10


211 4" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         2.00 10


212 6" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         2.85 10


213 8" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


         4.10 10


214 16" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       37.65 10


215 20" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       67.20 10


216 24" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set


       85.00 10


217 Meter Box Plastic box with no lid          7.50 200


218 CI  Meter Lid   -  Extra Cast iron .200" to .700" in 
thickness  


         7.89 300


219 Jumbo Meter Box & Lid Plastic box with plastic lid        24.00 40


VALVE BOX 220 Valve Box Lids   -  Extra          5.47 10


221 Top Halve of Valve Box - 
24" to 36"


       13.97 10


222 Bottom Halve of Valve Box 
- 24" to 36" 


       18.22 10


223 1"  Valve Box Riser          3.04 16


224 2"  Valve Box Riser          5.47 16


225 3"  Valve Box Riser          8.50 16


226 4"  Valve Box Riser        10.32 16


227 6"  Valve Box Riser        17.01 16


ITEMS LISTED ABOVE HAD INCORRECT CALCULATIONS. THE RED LISTED AMOUNTS 
ARE THE CORRECTED CALCULATIONS.


RED 
GASKET 


SETS


METER BOX 
& LIDS


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


Unit
Price


Extended
Price


UTILITIES SUPPLY
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS
KENDALL SUPPLY, 


INC.
SOUTHERN PIPE & 


SUPPLY


0.00 35.00 700.00 39.00 780.00 0.00


0.00 37.00 370.00 41.10 411.00 0.00


TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 6,914.00 TOTAL 5,992.00 TOTAL 0.00


7.00 70.00 6.50 65.00 0.00 0.00


8.00 80.00 8.80 88.00 0.00 0.00


9.00 90.00 9.70 97.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 40.60 406.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 74.00 740.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 101.00 1,010.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 240.00 TOTAL 2,406.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


8.24 1,648.00 7.50 1,500.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 14.20 4,260.00 0.00 0.00


33.47 1,338.80 28.00 1,120.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 2,986.80 TOTAL 6,880.00 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


0.00 7.30 73.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 21.20 212.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 25.80 258.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 5.20 83.20 0.00 0.00


0.00 9.50 152.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 14.40 230.40 0.00 0.00


0.00 16.50 264.00 0.00 0.00


0.00 25.00 400.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 1,672.60 TOTAL 0.00 TOTAL 0.00


TOTAL BID 
PRICE


198,109.62 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


263,074.80 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


273,282.72 TOTAL BID 
PRICE


40,229.00


20





		Water System- Distribution Parts Agenda Request File

		Water System- Distribution Parts Backup

		Purchasing - Distribution Parts Backup 1

		Purchasing - Distribution Parts Backup 2





